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May 20. 2019

N»w H*mpthir* 0*p«rtm«nt ot

BUSINESS AND

ECONOMIC AFFAIRS

His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
And the Honorable Executive Council

State House

Concord. New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Business and Economic Affairs, Office of Workforce Opportunity (BEA/OWO).
to enter into a contract for services with the Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.
(BM-CAP) (VC #177203 B003) in the amount of $1,880,000, effective July 1, 2019 through June 30, 2023
contingent upon Governor and Council approval: 100% Federal Funds.

Funding for this contract is to be encumbered from account titled. Workforce Ooportunitv. as follows and
pending budget approval for FY 2020, FY 2021, FY2022 and FY2023:

03-22-22-220510-1453000

102-500731 Contract for

Program Services

FY20

$470,000

FY21

$470,000
FY22

$470,000
FY23

$470,000

EXPLANATION

This contract between BEA/OWO and BM-CAP for the delivery of Senior Community Service Employment
Program (SCSEP) services is in response to the Senior Community Service Employment Program
(SCSEP) Request for Proposals (RFP) ttO2-BEA-OWO-2019 issued January 28, 2019. {See Attachment A
for RFP details). The US Department of Labor (USDOL) awards funds for SCSEP to the NH Department of
Business and Economic Affairs, Office of Workforce Opportunity; the state grant recipient for federal funds
for Title I of the Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (WlOA). The SCSEP program provides for part-
time, community service based job training for unemployed, low-income individuals age 55 or older facing
barriers to employment. Participants in the program receive a training stipend (minimum wage) for up to
20 hours per week.

This Is a four-year contract for services to ensure program continuity. For major WlOA service contracts,
efficiency in operation is a paramount policy consideration for the State Workforce Innovation and
Opportunity Board. Contractors must be able to operate a standardized "program" that requires significant
program management experience and understanding, along with the financial resources to reimburse the
state for any disallowed costs incurred because of erroneous eligibility determinations.

The Attorney General's Office has reviewed and approved this contract amendment as to form, substance
and execution.

Respectfully submitted.

liJ. 7^

Wildolfo (\
rector of

Ac^elo,
omic Development

ConcuVed,

-V,.

Taylor^6aswell,
Commissioner

9 1 Eagle Square
Suite 100

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

L 603.271.2341

k visilnh.gov nheconomy.com choosenh.com



Attachment A-SCSEP RFP Details

•  On January 28, 2019, BEA/OWO issued a RFP for SCSEP services on behalf of the State Workforce
Innovation and Opportunity Board. ' '

•  The purpose of the RFP was to identify a sen/ice provider to operate the State SCSEP project for four
consecutive years (July 1, 2019 - June 30, ,2023) consistent with federal and state policy and
procedures. The SCSEP program has very specific program delivery and federal reporting
requirements, making it desirable to maintain continuity of service from year to year. The current
contract period ends June 30, 2019.

•  The RFP posted on the NH Works and the State prpcurernent website. In addition, OWO staff sent the
RFP to NH Works collaborates, USDOL and known SCSEP service provider staff with instruction to
share as appropriate.

•  .The.jRFP explained the evaluation process in detail. Reviewers used scoring based on the program
elements listed in the sconng chart below to rank/espofidehts.'with'a,maximum,scqr^
Specifically reviewers were asked to assess: ^ ^ -r/.r.'. v./j
1. The experience, corporate/organizational/esources, and corporate/organizat[gn^qualifipations of

the bidder,- including staff experience and the,entities financiaL^capacity.-Tjhe evaluation team "
assessed to'what extent the brgarii^tion ahcJ'assighSl staff haVe the capabiiity to del'ive? the

^ services-described in-the RFP.-anddeliverabJes'-outlined inthe^bidder's prpposal.r ,.7^: -- - "
2. The bidder's understanding :of each of the's^ices*|bescribed in'the RFP'and the^inclusion of

specifics iri-the stateni.ent of-work: Jhe.biddefjs-knoi^edge of SCSEP brid the-bidderls-ability to
■ 'assuhie responsibilityVfor current participants'.^M'ecruit'eligible participants •as--neede'd*'t'develop

_appropriate host,agency sjtes and move SCSER participants to. eniplo^ent.,The .bidderls ability
: tf'v^td';c6brdl^ate•seivices^wlth the :NH-.Works centers and provide additionaininkb^td^a^rietwbrk of

.  -jstatewide agencies and.'organizations that^ provide services to ,lo.w .income individuals; and^the
-  -or^nizatioh, completeness and logic ofjthe pfoposi^.StatementPf Work-including theTability to

transfer and pay wages to existing SCSEPjpartjcipants'without disruptibn'ih services^
3. The cost proposal to determine if proposed costs meet minimum requirements;.are sufficient to

. support the;services, ,'a^s'descfitiea/ih the.RFP and .by the bi.dder-in,tKe'biddefcpr^ and
contain accurate calculations ' =,■ ,

•  The following comhfiittee of the State Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Board members served as
the RFP review panel. :T ■ '

o Ms. Kelly Clark - Regional Director, AARP New Hampshire
o Mr. Mike Alberts - Director of Organized Development. New England Wire Technologies
o Mr. Dave Cioffi -Former Small Business Owner

Ms. Meelynn Wong, OWO Program Manager served as staff to the review committee.

There were three respondents to the SCSEP RFP:
o Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack, Inc. (the current sub-grantee),
o  Senior Service America, Inc., and
o  Experience Works Inc.



The RFP review panel reviewed and scored each proposal for compliance with the RFP process. The
review panel is recommending BM-CAP for the SCSEP contract award-based on the final scores

Comrriunlty Action Program
Belknap-Merrlmack, Inc.

Range Dave

Cioffi

Mike

Alberts

Kelly Clark Reviewer

Average
1. Evaluation of Corporate

Ofganizatjpn, Background,
. Experience and Staff

Score Range
0 - 40 points

40

>

40 40 40

2. Evaluation of Scope of Work
»■ .' • . .

Score Range
0-50

.  48.5 .. 48 50 48.8

3. Evaluation of Cost Proposals Score Range
0-10 points

10 ,8 10 9.3

Totals • 100 ■ 98.5 . ■ -96 100 98.1

Senior Service America, Inc.
V

Range
i; - * .

Dave
Cioffi

Mike
• Alberts -

Kelly Clark
<  . ; . .

Revievyer
Average

■4. ' Evaluation of Corporate"'
Organization, Background,

•  •'Experiehcein'dStaff ■ '

Score Range
0 - 40 points

38 ' '

•. 0

20' -^ ■
; A- ■'• .•

29.33
>1

5. Evaluation of Scope of Work
.?• ~ •2-.' -a -.r.

Scofe;Range
^■^^6-50" '

.  .48. ., :25. , .  ,34.33

6. Evaluatioh'bfCosfPfoposals, Score Ra'hge
0T10' bdiihts "

'  10"
/
' 7 - .. TO V

' n. • '■

Totals..: ..ii:. TOO ^:-96..:_ .. ; ̂.55..-:,; -.;,„72.66

'ExperiericeWprks Inc;>, x- •c Range - • '• '■•'Dave
Cioffi;—•

•■■JMike\:i>x
ifAlberts

KellyrClark' '^Reviewer
Average

.•7r:Evaluation of Corporate , ■-1-
OrganiMtionr Background, ■ ■

>,jiExperience,and,Staff,''

Score'Range
0 -40 points

^  ' . . »»

•- -35'
.  i

-. -i-35'v y. 10^^'
r

26.67

■8.'-Evaluatibn oTScd'pe of Work Sco'fe Range
0-50

'47

cv .

" "'15 ■ ' . '"34.67
y ;

9. Evaluation of Cost Proposals Score Range
•'OTO'boihts'^'

10
-j ■■

8
... j!

10 9.33

Totals 100 92 85 "35 70.67

t • •



FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 5/8/15)

Notice: This agreement and all of its attachments shall become public upon submission to Governor and
Executive Council for approval. Any information that is private, confidential or proprietary must
be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

AGREEMENT

The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

IDENTIFICATION.

I.I State Agency Name
New Hampshire Dept of Business and Economic Affairs

(Office of Workforce Opportunity)

1.2 State Agency Address
1 Eagle Square
Concord, NH 03301

1.3 Contractor Name

Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.
1.4 Contractor Address

2 Industrial Park Drive

PO Box 1016

Concord, NH 03302-1016
1.5 Contractor Phone

Number

603-225-3295

1.6 Account Number

2205-14530000

1.7 Completion Date

June 30, 20^^

1:8 Price Limitation

51,880,000.00

1.9 Contracting OfTicer for Slate Agency
Jacqueline Heuser, Director, OWO

1.10 State Agency Telephone Number
(603) 271-7275

l.ll Contractor Signature

Qp 0, ULfiru_.
1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory
Jeanne Agri, Executive Director

1.13 4/knowledgement: State of Nevv\^ampshire County of Merrimack

On 5/15/2019 , before the undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified in block 1.12, or satisfactorily
proven to be the person whose name is signed in block l.l 1, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the capacity
indicated tinibJoqk 1.12.
1 ..U^?^l\'$ig!Tatqre ofiNotary Public or Justice of the Peace

/? KATHYL. HOWARD No»*yPuMo.NH

1.13.2-1 Name arid|Title-,of-Notary or Justice of the Peace

Howard, Notary Public

1.^ State kgency Signature

Date: ^
1.15 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory

Tcvvjlor Cttswell^ OofYimiS^iohei'
1.16 Appro^ by the N.H. Department of Administr

By:

ition, division of Personnel (ifapplicable)

Director, On;

1.1/ Approval^ ihe^JtefneyTTenei^fForm, Substance and Execution) (ifapplicable)

1.18 Approval by the Governor and Executive Council (ifapplicable)

By: On:
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2. EMPLOYMENT OF CONTRACTOR/SERVICES TO

BE PERFOtRMED. The State of New Hampshire, acting
through the agency identified in block 1.1 ("State"), engages
contractor identified in block 1.3 ("Contractor") to perform,
and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of goods, or
both, identified and more particularly described in the attached
EXHTBIT A which is incorporated herein by reference
("Services").

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, if
applicable, this Agreement, and all obligations of the parties
hereunder, shall become effective on the date the Governor
and Executive Council approve this Agreement as indicated in
block 1.18, unless no such approval is required, in which case
the Agreement shall become effective on the date the
Agreement is signed by the State Agency as shown in block
1.14 ("Effective Date").
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior
to the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not
become effective, the State shall have no liability to the
Contractor, including without limitation, any obligation to pay
the Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithst^ding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without liihitalion,'the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation
of funds, and in no event shall the State be.liable for any
payments hereunder in excess of such available appropriated
funds. In the event of a reduction or termination of

appropriated funds, the State shall have the right to withhold
payment until such funds become available, if ever, and slwH
have the right to terminate this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such termination. The State
shall npt be required to transfer funds fî om any other account
to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds in that

Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/

PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of
payment are identified and more particularly described in
EXHTBIT B which is incorporated herein by reference.
5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete
compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State
shall have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract
price.

5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement
those liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA
80:7 through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.
5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in
no event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually
made hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block

1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS

AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all statutes, laws, regulations,
and orders of federal, state, county or municipal authorities
which impose any obligation or duty upon the Contractor,
including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal opportunity
laws. This may include the requirement to utilize auxiliary
aids Md services to ensure that persons with communication
disabilities, including vision, hearing and speech, can
communicate with, receive information from, and convey
information to the Contractor. In addition, the Contractor
shall comply with all applicable copyright laws.
6.2 During the terin of this Agreement, the Contractor shall
not discriminate against employees or applicants for
employment because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex,
handicap, sexual orientation, or national origin and will take
affirmative action to prevent such discrimination.
6.3 If this Agreemeiit is funded in any part by monies of the
United Stotes, the Contractor shall comply with all the
provisions of Executive OrdehNo. 11246 ("Equal
Employment Opportunit/'), as supplemented by the
regulations of the United States Department of Labor (41
C.F.R. Part 60), and with any rules, regulations and guidelines
as the State ofNew Hampshfre or the United States issue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor further agrees to
pemut the State or United States access to any,of the •
Contractor's books, records and accounts for the purpose of
ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations and orders,
and the covenants,.terms and conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all
personnel necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor
warrants that all personnel engaged in the Services shall be
qualified to perform'the Services, and shall be properly
licensed and otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable
laws.

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire,
and shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State
employee or official, who is materially involved in the
procurement, administration or performance of this
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Agreement. This provision shall survive termination of this
Agreement.
7.3 The Contracting OfScer specified in block 1.9. or his or
her successor, shall be the State's representative. In the event
of any dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement,
the Contracting OfBcer's decision shall be final for the State.

8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.
8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder
("Event of Default"):
8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;
8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition
of this Agreement.
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State
may take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the
absence of a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30)
days from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is
not Imely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two
(2) days after giving the Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Conu^cior during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default

shall never be paid to the Contractor,
8.2.3 set off against any other obligations the State may owe to
the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of any
Event of Default; and/or
8.2.4, treat the Agreement as breached and pursue any of its
remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. DAT A/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/

PRESERVATION.

9.1 As used in this Agreement, the word "data" shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses,
graphic representations, computer programs, computer
printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, papers, and documents,
all whether finished or unfinished.

9.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon
termination of this Agreement for any reason.
9.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91-A or other existing law. Disclosure of data
requires prior written approval of the State.

Page 3

10. TERMINATION. In the event of an early termination of
this Agreement for any reason other than the completion of the
Services, the Contractor shall deliver to the Contracting
Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date of
termination, a repon ("Termination Report") describing in
detail all Services performed,, and the contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject

. matter, content, and number of copies of the Termination
Report shall be identical to those of any Final Report
described in the attached EXHIBIT A

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In

the performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all
respects an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor
an employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers' compensation
or other emoluments provided by the Stale to its employees.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.

The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written notice and
consent of the State. None of the Services shall be

subcontracted by the Contractor without the prior written
notice and consent of the State.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall defend,
indemnify and hold harmless the State, its officers and
employees, from and against any and all losses suffered by the
State, its officers ̂ d employees, and any and all claims,
liabilities or penalties asserted against the State, its officers
and employees, by or on behalf of any person, on account of.
based or reriiltihg from, arising out of (or which may be
claimed to. arise out of) the acts or omissions of the
Contractor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the

sovereign immunity of the Stale, which immunity is hereby
reserved to the State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall
survive the termination of this AgreemenL

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The CoQtr^.tor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or
assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following
insurance:

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability insurance against all
claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts
of not less than $ 1,000,000pcr occurrence and 52,000.000
aggregate; and
14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering ail
property subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not
less than 80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14. i herein shall
be 00 policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the
State of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of
Insurance, and issued by insurers licensed in the State of New
Hampshire.
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14.3 The Contractor shall flimish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certificale(s)
of insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certificate(s) of
insurance for all renewal(s) of insurance required under this
Agreement no later than thirty (30) days prior to the expiration
date of each of the insurance policies. The certificate(s) of
insurance and any renewals thereof shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. Each certificate(s) of
insurance shall contain a clause requiring the insurer to
provide the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his
or her successo^r, no less than thirty (30) days prior written
notice of cancellation or modification of the policy.

15. WORKERS' COMPENSATION.
15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees,
certifies and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with
or exempt from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281 -A
("Workers' Compensation").
15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the
requirements ofN.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall
maintain, and require any subcontractor or assignee to secure
and maintain, payment of Workers' Compensation in
connection with activities which the person proposes to
undertake pursuant to this Agreement. Contractor shall
fiimish the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his
or her succeskir, proof of Workers' Compensation in the
manner described in N.H. RSA chapter 281 -A and any
applicable renewal(s) thereof, which shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. The State shall not be
responsible for payment of any Workers' Compensation
premiums or for any other claim or benefit for Contractor, or
any subcontractor or employee of Contractor, which might
arise under applicable State of New Hampshire Workers'
Competition laws in connection with the performance of the
Services under this Agreement.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the State to
enforce any provisions hereof after any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of
Default, or any subsequent Event of Default. No express
failure to.enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a
waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and all of the
provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of Default
on the part of the Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the
time of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United
States Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended,
waived or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed
by the parties hereto and only after approval of such
amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire unless no

such approval is required under the circumstances pursuant to
State law, rule or policy.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.

This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement
is the wording chosen by the parties to express their mutual
intent, and no rule of construction shall be applied against or
in favor of any party.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to .
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement
are for reference purposes only, and the words contained
therein shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or
aid in the interpretation, construction or meaning of the
provisions of this Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set
forth in the attached EXHIBIT C are incorporated herein by
reference.

23. SEVERABILITY. In the event any of the provisions of
this Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to
be contr^ to any state or federal law, the remaining
provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force and
effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may
be executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original; constitutes the entire Agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
Agreements and understandings relating hereto.

Page 4 of 4

Contractor Initials^
Date



NH Department of Business & Economic Affairs
Office of Workforce Opportunity

STANDARD EXHIBIT A

SCOPE OF SERVICES

Agreement Period; July 1, 2019 - June 30, 2023

Subrecipient: Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. (BM-CAP).

The Office of Management and Budget (OMB) guidelines governing the fiscal administration of federally
funded programs defines the role of Belknap-Merrimack Community Action Program under this Agreement as
that of a "Subrecipient" of federal funds {versus a contractor). Therefore, applicable OMB guidelines governing
the role of a sub-recipient shall be applied to BM-CAP through this Agreement.

Business and Economic Affairs, a department within New Hampshire State government describes the legal
document used to implement this service Agreement a "contract" for services. Therefore, all State contract
rules and procedures shall be applied to BM-CAP through this Agreement.

SCOPE OF SERVICES

This cost reimbursement Agreement for services between Community Action Program Belkhap Merrimack
Counties. Inc. (BMCAP).and Department of Business and Economic Affairs. Office of Workforce Opportunity

"• (OVyO) will be for a term beginning July 1. 2019 and terminating on June 30. 2019, with an option to renew
the Agreement for up to one additional year, as needed and approved by the Governor and Council.

Total payments under this Agreement shall not exceed $1.880,000.00 and shall be expended consistent with
an approved line item budget, which shall be negotiated annually with BEA/OWO^ Line item budgets shall be
established upon receipt of grant funds from USDOL. for each program year covered under this Agreement.

Funds authorized under this Agreement are for the sole purpose of implementing Senior Community Service
Employment Program (SCSEP) services and shall not be used for any purpose other than those activities
identified in the Statement of Work outlined in RFP # 02-BEA-OWO-2019 and/or in accordance with US DOL
SCSEP program rules and regulations.

As a condition of this Agreement, BMCAP assumes responsibility for the specific operational, fiscal and
monitoring responsibilities cited in this Agreement for the purpose of delivering services to SCSEP eligible
participants, and agrees to carry out these duties consistent with the conditions and terms of th's Agreement,
as well as all applicable federal I and state'laws, regulations and requirements.

In addition, by signing this Agreement BMCAP acknowledges the substantial operational level oversight
retained by the OWO under this Agreement for the duration of the Agreement performance period.

BM-CAP shall operate the State Senior Community Service Employment Program (SCSEP) project
consistent with the policy and procedures approved by BEA, and/or the US Department of Labor and the
terms and conditions as specified in RFP#02-BEA-OWO-2019 (henceforth known as the RFP), incorporated
by reference into this Agreement.

DBEA-BMCAP SCSEP 1 BM-CAP Initialsqa



Deliverables

1. BMCAP will be responsible for the deliverables specified in Section 4 (Statement of Work) of the RFP
and the Required Programmatic Assurances for SCSEP (Attachment A), and ail deliverables shall be
implemented consistent with the process and procedures outlined in tfie proposal submitted by BMCAP
in response to the RFP, all of which are incorporated by reference into this Agreement.

2. Enrollment goals (i.e., participant slots) are established by USDOL on an annual basis. BMCAP will at a
minimum, enroll 100% of the number of authorized positions allocated for each program year covered
under this Agreement. Over-enrollments are allowed as a means of maintaining a level number of
participants to balance out program exits.

3. SCSEP Program Goals are established by USDOL on an annual basis. BMCAP will be responsible for
achieving performance measures. For the purpose of this Agreement, achieving a goal shall be defined
as no less than 80% of any measure. The measures are applied to all participants exited during the
SCSEP program year, and shall be determined to have been met or not met based on the SPARQ final
year-end performance report. Performance goals will be assigned to BMCAP annually for each of the
program years covered under this Agreement.

4. Staffing Requirements - BMCAP will maintain a staffing level adequate to effectively manage the SCSEP
Project consistent with the requirements outlined in the RFP. BMCAP shall submit for approval, a staffing
plan to the BEA/OWO Program Manager by no later than the first day of July for each program year
covered in this Agreement, h

5. Reportmg Requirements - BMCAP will submit timely and accurate reports consistent with the
requirements stipulated in Section 4 of the RFP which includes financial reporting using the accrual
method no less than once per quarter for each program year covered in this Agreement.

6. BMCAP shall be responsible for submitting complete and timely quarterly SCSEP reports to BEA/OWO
consistent with federal reporting requirements.

7. System Requirements - BMCAP shall be responsible for maintaining adequate technology and internet
access to ensure timely data entry in the SPARQ or other SCSEP case management system approved
by the national office, consistent with Section'4 of the RFP.

8. BMCAP will be responsible for adhering to terms and conditions specified in Section 5 Special Conditions
of the RFP.
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NH Department of Business & Economic Affairs
Office of Workforce Opportunity

STANDARD EXHIBIT B

TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF PAYMENT

Agreement Period: July 1, 2019 - June 30. 2023

Subrecipient: Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties. Inc.

PAYMENT/ FINANCIAL / BUDGET

1. This Agreement is funded with federal funds from the US Department of Labor made available under the
Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) number: 17.235 for the purpose of the delivery of SCSEP
services to eligible 55+ residents of New Hampshire.

2. Subject to BM-CAP's compliance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement, and for services
provided consistent with the Scope of Services as outlined in Exhibit A and the RFP, BEA shall reimburse
the BM-CAP up to a maximum total payment of $1,880,000.00.

3. Payments for services under this Agreement are limited to reimbursement for actual expenses incurred
in the fulfillment of this Agreement during the contract effective period.

4. Line-item budgets shall be negotiated annually upon receipt of the federal grant award to the State.

5. Expenditures shall be in accordance with the approved line-item budget negotiated between BMCAP and
BEA/OWO. BM-CAP may amend the budget through line item increases, decreases or the creation of
new line items only with prior written approval from BEA/OWO. Adjusted budgets shall not exceed the
funding grant for each program year.

6. BM-CAP agrees that all financial reports/invoices shall at a minimum be itemized by administrative,
participant costs, and other participant costs.,

7. BM-CAP has never received a negotiated indirect cost rate and, pursuant to the exceptions noted at 2
CFR 200.414(f) in the Cost Principles of the Uniform Guidance has elected to charge a de minimis rate
of 10% of modified total direct costs (see 2 CFR 200.68 for definition of MTDC) which may be used
indefinitely. This methodology must be used consistently for all Federal awards until such time as BM-
CAP chooses to negotiate for an indirect cost rate, which they may apply to do at any time. (See 2 CFR
200.414(0 for more information on use of the de minimis rate.)

8. The National SCSEP Office limits administrative cost to a total of 13.5% of the annual grant awarded to
.the State. Local administrative funds (i.e., a portion of the 13.5% allowable) shall be negotiated with BM-
CAP annually, the amount of which shall be specified in the approved line-item budget.

9. BM-CAP is solely responsible for securing and tracking the 10% match requirement for the total SCSEP
grant annual award (i.e. match funds for all state and local expenditures with SCSEP funds). The 10%
match is calculated based on actual grant expenditures. BMCAP, Inc. shall report up-to-date matching
fund amounts on each financial report and/or invoice submitted.

10. Invoices must be submitted monthly within 30 days of the end of the previous month and be submitted
in a format consistent with an approved budget, inclusive of accrued costs in accordance with OWO and
federal accrual reporting requirements. The payment of invoices is subject to receipt by BEA-OWO of
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required reports as stated in Exhibit A - Scope of Services.

11. At a minimum, all invoices shall identify the CFDA number (i.e.. funding source), the BEA/OWO
assigned Agreement number and.the expense/invoice period.

12. A final annual payment request shall be submitted no later than forty-five (45) days from June 30th for
each program year. Failure to submit a complete, accurate and timely final invoice by this date could
result in non-payment.

13. Monthly invoices may be sent to the BEA/OWO Fiscal Administrator via email, or mailed to:

Business and Economic Affairs

1 Eagle Square, Suite 100

Concord, NH 03301

Attention: OWO Fiscal Administrator

Payment checks will be mailed to;

Community Action Program Beiknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.

PO Box 1016

Concord, NH 03302-1016

Attention: Chief Accountant BM-CAP, Inc.

14. BM-CAP must have written authorization from SEA prior to using Agreement funds to purchase any
property or equipment with a cost in excess of $250.00 and with a useful life beyond one-year, and shall
maintain an inventory of property and equipment either purchased or leased with funds made available
through this Agreement for review upon request.

15. BM-CAP shall maintain sufficient documentation on file in their offices to support invoices, including
match funds, and make such documentation available for review by authorized BEA staff and/or its
auditors.

16. BM-CAP shall report expenditures by program year and will be responsible for achieving the financial
performance goal of 100% expenditure of total funds budgeted annually unless otherwise agreed to in
writing by BEA.

17. BEA reserves the right to request ad hoc financial and/or participant status reports in the event further
information is needed to evaluate program effectiveness as deemed reasonable and necessary by BEA
and/or the State of New Hampshire.

18. BM-CAP shall adhere to all fiscal management policies and procedures stipulated in the body of this
Agreement, and all other applicable WlOA, federal. State and BEA cash management regulations and
policies, including the USDOL requirement for accrual reporting.

19. BM-CAP is solely responsible for paying to BEA any disallowed costs associated with the
misappropriation of federal funds and/or costs expended on individuals who were erroneously
determined to be eligible for WIOA/SCSEP services. Disallowed costs may not be paid with federal funds,
regardless of the funding source.

20. BEA reserves the right to increase and/or decrease Agreement funds subject to continued availability of
federal funds, satisfactory performance of services, and approval by the Governor and Executive
Council.

21. BM-CAP's use of funds in this Agreement must be in accordance with SCSEP certifications and
assurances and any applicable Workforce Innovation Opportunity Act (WlOA) program assurances. See

'Standard Form Exhibit C.
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22. BM-CAP is prohibited from using federal funds awarded under this Agreement for the following items
and/or activities; automobiles; lobbying; real property and improvements; cost of interest payments;
membership dues; professional license; annual professional dues or fees; finance charges, late fees or
penalties; and depreciation charges. This is not intended to be an all-inclusive list. BM-CAP must review
any proposed costs outside of the approved line item budget with BEA for final approval.

23. WlOA Infrastructure Costs - WlOA sec. 121(b)(1)(B) and 20 CFR 678.400 require at a minimum that the
following programs to be One-Stop partners:

WlOA title I programs: Adult, Dislocated Worker, and Youth formula programs; Job Corps; YouthBuild;
Native American programs; National Farmworker Jobs Program (NFJP); Wagner-Peyser Act Employment
Service (ES) program authorized under the Wagner-Peyser Act (29.U.S.C. 49 et seq.), as amended by
WlOA title III; Senior Community Service Employment Program (SCSEP) authorized under title V of the
Older Americans Act of 1965; Trade Adjustment Assistance (TAA) activities authorized under chapter 2
of title II of the Trade Act of 1974; Unemployment Compensation (UC) programs; Jobs for Veterans State
Grants (JVSG) programs authorized under chapter 41of title 38, U.S.C.; and Reentry Employment
Opportunities (REO) programs (formerly known as Reintegration of Ex-Offenders Program (RExO)
authorized undersea 212 of the Second Chance Act of 2007 (42 U.S.C. 17532) and WlOA sec. 169.

One-Stop partner programs including all programs that are funded under title I of WlOA are required to
contribute to the infrastructure costs and certain additional costs of the One-Stop delivery system in
proportion to their use and relative benefits received as required in 20 CFR 678.700 and 678.760. The
sharing and allocation of infrastructure costs between One-Stop partners is governed by WlOA sec.
121(h). WIOA's implementing regulations, and the Federal Cost Principles contained in the Uniform
Guidance at 2 CFR part 200and DOL's exceptions at 2 CFR part 2900. The Federal Cost Principles state
that a partner's contribution is an allowable, reasonable, necessary, and alldcable cost to the program
and is consistent with other legal requirements.

BM-CAP shall use SCSEP funds to contribute to the shared one-stop infrastructure costs consistent with
cost allocation plan approved by the NH Works Consortium, as stipulated in the NH Works MOU. of which
BM-CAP shall be a signatory partner. NH Employment Security shall be the lead fiscal entity for the NH
Works MOU, and as such shall invoice BM-CAP for infrastructure costs no less than quarterly for the
duration of this Agreement.

24. Termination for Convenience: In addition to the Event of Default/Remedies as outlined in number eight
(8) of the NH P37 Contract Document; BEA/OWO by thirty (30) day written notice, may terrninate this
agreement, in whole or in part, when it is in the best interests of BEA/OWO. If the agreement is for supplies
and is so terminated. BE-CAP shall be compensated in accordance with its audltable costs to point or
notification of termination. To the extent that the agreement is for services and is so terminated, BEA/OWO
shall be liable only for payment in accordance with the payment provisions of the agreement for the actual
sen/ices rendered to the effective date of the termination.
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NH Department of Business & Economic Affairs
Office of Workforce Opportunity

STANDARD EXHIBIT C

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

Agreement Period: July 1, 2019 - June 30. 2023

Subrecipient: Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.

1. Subrecipient Obligations: BM-CAP covenants and agrees that all funds received by BM-CAP under this
Agreement shall be used only as payment to BM-CAP for services provided to eligible individuals and,
in the furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, BM-CAP hereby covenants and agrees as follows:

2. Compliance with Federal and State Laws: Eligibility determination for SCSEP shall be made in
accordance with applicable federal and state laws, regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and
procedures.

3. Time and Manner of Determination: Eligibility determinations shall be made on forms provided by US
DOL through SPARQ or others prescribed for that purpose and shall be made and remade at such
times as are prescribed by the SCSEP regulations.

4. Documentation: BM-CAP shall maintain a data file on each recipient of services hereunder, which file
shall include all information necessary to support an eligibility determination and such other information
as the BEA requests. BM-CAP shall furnish BEA/OWO with all forms and documentation regarding
eligibility determinations that BEA/OWO may request or require.

5. Grievance Procedures/Customer Complaints/Equal Opportunity: BM-CAP understands that all
applicants for services hereunder, as well as individuals declared ineligible have a right to a fair hearing
regarding that determination. BM-CAP hereby covenants and agrees that all applicants for services shall
be permitted to fill out an application form and that each applicant or re-applicant shall be Informed of
his/her right to a fair hearing In accordance with the required grievance policy.

(a) BM-CAP shall ensure that all applicants for SCSEP funded services receive a written grievance
procedure notice, and that a signed copy attesting to the receipt of this information is included in each
applicant's hard copy file.

(b) BM-CAP shall ensure that all personnel funded with SCSEP funds are trained in the grievance policy
and procedure applicable for the funding source supporting this Agreement.

(0) BM-CAP shall ensure that all personnel funded with SCSEP funds are trained in the Equal Opportunity
law, policy and procedure applicable for the funding source supporting this Agreement, and that
refresher training Is provided annually.

(d) BM-CAP shall ensure that the BEA/OWO {Office of Workforce Opportunity) EO Officer is informed
immediately of any formal grievance filed by a program applicant or participant.

(e) BM-CAP shall respond either verbally or in writing to any complaint that does not constitute a formal
grievance within two days from receipt of such complaint.

6. Gratuities or Kickbacks: BM-CAP agrees that it is a breach of this Agreement to accept or make a
payment, gratuity or offer of employment on behalf of BM-CAP, any Subrecipient of BM-CAP or the State
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7.

in order to influence the performance of the Scope of Work detailed in Exhibit A of this Agreement. The
State may terminate this Agreement and any sub-agreement if it is determined that payments, gratuities
or offers of employment of any kind were offered or received by any officials, officers, employees or
agents of BM-CAP, or Subrecipient/contractor of BM-CAP.

Retroactive Payments: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Agreement or in any
other document. Agreement or understanding, it is expressly understood and agreed by the parties
hereto, that no payments will be made hereunder to reimburse BM-CAP for costs incurred for any
purpose or for any services provided to any individual prior to the Effective Date of the Agreement and
no payments shall be made for expenses incurred by BM-CAP for any services provided prior to the date
on which the individual applies for services or (except as otherwise provided by the federal regulations)
prior to a determination that the individual is eligible for such services,

8. Maintenance of Records: In addition to the eligibility records specified above. BM-CAP covenants and
agree to maintain the following records during the Agreement Period;

9. Fiscal Records: books, records, documents and other data evidencing and reflecting all costs and other
expenses incurred by BM-CAP in the performance of the Agreement, and all income received or collected
by BM-CAP during the Agreement Period, said records to be maintained in accordance with accounting
procedures and practices which sufficiently and properly reflect all such costs and expenses, and which
are acceptable to BEA, and to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original
evidence of costs such as purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials,
inventories, valuations of in-kind contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested
or required by BEA.

10. Statistical Records: Statistical, enrollment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of services
during the Agreement Period, which records shall include all records of application and eligibility
(including all forms required to determine eligibility for each such recipient), records regarding the
provision of services and all invoices submitted to BEA to obtain payment for such sen/ices.

11. Record Retention: Complete paper ("hard copy") participant files shall be maintained by BM-CAP for no
less than three years as required under federal regulation. BEA may require the retention of hard copy
files for up to six years, if the participant file is selected for a data validation review. BM-CAP shall not
destroy any participant files without written permission from BEA.

12. Audit: BM-CAP shall submit a copy of their annual audit report to BEA within 60 days after the close of
the agency fiscal year. The report must be prepared in accordance with the provision of Office of
Management and Budget "Super Circular", "Audits of States. Local Governments, and Non-Profit
Organizations" and the provisions of Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations, Programs,
Activities and Functions, issued by the US General Accounting Office (GAO standards) as they pertain
to financial compliance audits.

(a) Audit and Review: During the term of this Agreement and the period for retention hereunder, BEA,
the United States Department of Labor, and any of their designated representatives shall have access
to all reports and records maintained pursuant to the Agreement for purposes of audit, examination,
excerpts and transcripts.

(b) Audit Liabilities: In addition to and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the Agreement, it is
understood and agreed by BM-CAP that BM-CAP shall be held liable for any state or federal audit
exceptions and shall return to BEA/OWO, all payments made under the Agreement to which exception
has been taken or which have been disallowed because of sucti an exception.

13. Confidentiality of Records: BM-CAP agrees to maintain the confidentiality of any information regarding
participants and their immediate families that may be obtained through application forms, interviews,
tests, reports from public agencies or counselors, or any other source in accordance with the Personal
Identifier Information policy and procedure. Without the permission of the SCSEP applicant/participant
such information shall be divulged only as necessary for purposes related to the performance or
evaluation of this Agreement, and to persons having responsibilities under the Agreement!
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(a) BM-CAP is responsible for taking reasonable steps to ensure the physical security of such data under
its control.

(b) BM-CAP is responsible for ensuring each of its employees, vendors or sub-recipients having any
involvement with personal data or other confidential information are informed in the laws and
regulations relating to confidentiality.

(c) Each employee funded through this Agreement shall be required to sign a confidentiality statement
provided by BM-CAP and kept on file.

14. Reports: Program and Fiscal: BM-CAP agrees to submit the following reports at the following times if
requested by the BEA/OWO.

(a) Quarterly Progress Reports: Written reports containing a detailed description of all planned verses
actual program performance to the date of the report and containing such other information as shall
be deemed satisfactory by US DOL and/or BEA to justify the rate of payment hereunder. Such Reports
shall be submitted on the form designated by UO DOL/ BEA or deemed satisfactory by the BEA/OWO.

(b) Annual Report; An annual report shall be submitted within sixty (60) days from the end of the program
year for each year covered under this Agreement. The Report shall be in a form satisfactory to the
BEA and shall contain a summary statement of progress toward goals and objectives stated in the
annual grant application approved by US DOL and other information required by the BEA. [It is
understood that final performance information from SPARQ will not be available at that time]

15. Corripletion of Services: BM-CAP will be legally obligated to turn over complete data files in the specified
electronic format, as well as hard copy case files, to BEA at the time that BM-CAP ceases to operate the
program/project funded through this Agreement. In addition to inventory with a value of $250.00 or
greater, purchased with grant funds.

16. Credits: All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other materials prepared during or
resulting from the performance of the services of the Agreement shall include the following statement:

"The preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under an Agreement with the State of New
Hampshire. Department of Business and Economic Affairs, with funds provided by the United States
Department of Labor."

17. Veterans' Priority Provisions: BM-CAP agrees to comply with the provisions of the "Jobs for Veterans
Acr (JVA). Public Law 107-288 (38 USC 4215). as implemented by the Final Rule published on
December 19,2008 at 73 Fed. Reg. 78132. The JVA provides priority of service to veterans and spouses
of eligible veterans for the receipt of employment, training, and placement services. Priority of service for
veterans is a condition of receipt of US DOL funds.

18. Buy American Notice Requirement: To the greatest extent practicable, and the extent to which purchases
are allowable in this Agreement, BMtCAP agrees to purchase American made equipment and products.
(See WlOA Section 505-Buy American Requirements).

19. Salary and Bonus Limitations:

(a) No funds available under this Agreement may be used by a recipient or subrecipient of such funds to
pay the salary and bonuses of an individual, either as direct costs or indirect costs, at a rate in excess
of the annual rate of basic pay prescribed for level II of the Executive Schedule under 5 U.S.C. 5313,
which can be found at https://www.opm.gov/.

(b) In instances where funds awarded under this agreement pay only a portion of the salary or bonus,
the SCSEP funds may only be charged for the share of the employee's salary or bonus attributable
to the work performed on the SCSEP grant. That portion cannot exceed the proportional Executive
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level II rate. The restriction applies to the sum of salaries and bonuses charged as either direct costs
or indirect costs under SCSEP.

(c) The limitation described in' paragraph (a) of this section will not apply to contractors (as defined in 2
CFR 200.23) providing goods and services..

(d) When an individual is working for the same recipient or Subrecipient in multiple offices that are funded
by title I of WlOA or the Wagner-Peyser Act, the recipient or Subrecipient must ensure that the sum
of the individual's salary and bonus does not exceed the prescribed limit in paragraph (a) of this
section.

20. Intellectual Property Rights: The Federal Government reserves a paid-up, nonexclusive and irrevocable
license to reproduce, publish or otherwise use, and to authorize others to use for federal purposes: i) the
copyright in all products developed with SCSEP funds, including a sub-grant or Agreement under the
BM-CAP; and ii) any rights of copyright to which BM-CAP purchases ownership with SCSEP funds
(including but not limited to curricula, training models, technical assistance products, and any related
materials). Such uses include, but are not limited to. the right to modify and distribute such products
worldwide by any means, electronically or otherwise. Federal funds may not be used to pay any royalty
or licensing fee associated with such copyrighted material, although they may be used to pay costs for
obtaining a copy which is limited to the developer/seller costs of copying and shipping. If revenues are
generated through selling products developed with Agreement funds, including intellectual property,
these revenues are program income. Program income is added to the Agreement and must be expended
for allowable Agreement activities.

21. Mandated Data Entry Systems: That BM-CAP will be legally obligated to enter data required by
BEA/OWO and/or the US Department of Labor, relating to all participants served during the Agreement
period in the case management system mandated by BEA/OWO. (e.g., SPARQ for SCSEP projects. E
Teams for WlOA services). BM-CAPs shall be responsible for keeping participant's files up-to-date, and
timely enough to meet quarterly reporting deadline requirements.

22. Disallowed Costs: BM-CAP will be solely responsible for paying BEA/OWO any and all.disallowed costs
associated with the misappropriation of federal funds and/or costs expended on participants who were
erroneous determined to be eligible for sen/ices. Disallowed costs may not be paid with any other federal
funds.

23. Certification Regarding Debarment: Debarment and Suspension (Executive Orders 12549 and 12689)—
A contract award (see 2 CFR 180.220) must not be made to parties listed on the government wide
exclusions in the System for Award Management (SAM), in accordance with the OMB guidelines at 2
CFR 180 that implement Executive Orders 12549 (3 CFR part 1986 Comp., p. 189) and 12689 (3 CFR
part 1989 Comp., p. 235), "Debarment and Suspension." SAM Exclusions contains the names of parties
debarred, suspended, or otherwise excluded by agencies, as well as parties declared ineligible under
statutory or regulatory authority other than Executive Order 12549.

(a) BMCAP shall certify by signature to this agreement that to the best of their knowledge, neither BM-
CAP nor any of its principals:

(b) are presently or have been debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or
voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by a Federal Agency or State Agency;

(c) have within a five-year period preceding this agreement been convicted of, or had a civil judgment
rendered against them for commission of fraud, a criminal offense in connection with obtaining,
attempting to obtain, or performing a public (federal, state, or local) transaction or Agreement under
a public transaction, violation of antitrust statutes; commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery,
falsification or destruction of records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

(d) are presently indicted for or criminally or civilly charged by a govemment entity (federal, state, or
local) with the commission of any of the offenses enumerated in (b) of this certification; and

(e) have not within a three-year period preceding this agreement had one or more public transactions
(federal, state, or local) terminated for cause. "
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24. Compliance with the Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. 7401-7671q.) and the Federal Water Pollution Control Act
(33 U.S.C. 1251-1387), as amended; Contracts and sub-grants of amounts in excess of $150,000 must
contain a provision that requires the non-Federal award to agree to comply with all applicable standards,
orders or regulations issued pursuant to the Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. 7401 -7671q) and the Federal Water
Pollution Control Act as amended (33 U.S.C. 1251-1387). Violations must be reported to the Federal
awarding agency and the Regional Office of the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA). BMCAP shall
certify by signature to this agreement that they shall comply with the Clean Air Act and the Federal Water
Pollution Control Act to the extent that such provisions apply to this agreement.

25. Compliance with Procurement of recovered materials: BMCAP shall certify by signature to this
agreement that they shall comply with Solid Waste Disposal Act to the extent that such provisions may
apply to this agreement. See §200.322 Procurement of recovered materials. A non-Federal entity that is
a state agency or agency of a political subdivision of a state and its contractors must comply with section
6002 of the Solid Waste Disposal Act, as amended by the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act.
The requirements of Section 6002 include procuring only items designated in guidelines of the
Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) at 40 CFR part 247 that contain the highest percentage of
recovered materials practicable, consistent with maintaining a satisfactory level of competition, where
the purchase price of the item exceeds $10,000 or the value of the quantity acquired during the preceding
fiscal year exceeded $10,000; procuring solid waste management services in a manner that maximizes
energy and resource recovery; and establishing an affirmative procurement program for procurement of
recovered materials identified in the EPA guidelines. (78 FR 78608, Dec. 26, 2013, as amended at 79
FR 75888, Dec. 19. 2014]. BMCAP shall certify by signature to this agreement that they shall comply
with Solid Waste Disposal Act to the extent that such provisions may apply to this agreement.

26. Breach of Contract: Contracts for more than the simplified acquisition threshold currently set at $150,000,
which is the inflation adjusted amount determined by the Civilian Agency Acquisition Council and the
Defense Acquisition Regulations Council (Councils) as authorized by 41 U.S.C. 1908, must address
administrative,, contractual, or legal remedies in instances where contractors violate or breach contract
terms. BM-CAP agrees to comply with the terms and conditions as set forth in the State Contract P-37
document #8, which provides for such sanctions and penalties as appropriate.

27. Equal Employment Opportunity. As a condition to the award of financial assistance from the Department
of Labor under Title I of WlOA, the grant applicant assures that it has the ability to comply with the
nondiscrimination and equal opportunity provisions of the following laws and will remain in compliance
for the duration of the award of federal financial assistance:

(a) Section 188 of the Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (WlOA), which prohibits discrimination
against all individuals in the United States on the basis of race, color, religion, sex (including
pregnancy, childbirth, and related medical conditions, transgender status, and gender identity),
national origin (including limited English proficiency), age, disability, or political affiliation or belief, or
against beneficiaries on the basis of either citizenship status or participation in any WlOA Title I-
financially assisted program or activity;

(b) Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended, which prohibits discrimination on the bases of
race, color and national origin;

(c) Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended, which prohibits discrimination against
qualified individuals with disabilities;

(d) The Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended, which prohibits discrimination on the basis of
age; and

■  (e) Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, as amended, which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of sex in educational programs.

(f) Compliance with 29 CFR part 38 and all other regulations implementing the laws listed above.

(g) BMCAP shall agree by signature to this agreement to comply with the requirement to include equal
opportunity clause outlined below. Except as otherwise provided under 41 CFR Part 60, all contracts
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that meet the definition of "federally assisted construction contract" in 41 CFR Part 60-1.3 must include
the equal opportunity clause provided under 41 CFR 60-1.4(b), in accordance with Executive Order
11246, "Equal Employment Opportunity" (30 FR 12319, 12935, 3 CFR Part, 1964-1965 Comp., p.
339), as amended by Executive Order 11375, "Amending Executive Order 11246 Relating to Equal
Employment Opportunity," and implementing regulations at 41 CFR part 60, "Office of Federal
Contract Compliance Programs, Equal Employment Opportunity, Department of Labor."

(h) During the performance of this contract (agreement), the contractor (BM-CAP) agrees as follows:
a. The contractor will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment

because of race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, or national origin.
The contractor will take affirmative action to ensure that applicants are employed, and that
employees are treated,during employment, without regard to their race, color, religion, sex,
sexual orientation, gender identity, or national origin. Such action shall include, but not be
limited to the following: Employment, upgrading, demotion, or transfer, recruitment or
recruitment advertising; layoff or termination; rates of pay or other forms of compensation;
and selection for training, including apprenticeship. The contractor agrees to post in
conspicuous places, available to employees and applicants for employment, notices to be
provided by the contracting officer setting forth the provisions of this nondlscrimination clause.

b. The contractor will, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed by or on behalf
of the contractor, state that all qualified applicants will receive consideration for employment
without regard to race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, or national
origin.

c. The contractor will not discharge or in any other manner discriminate against any employee
or applicant for employment because such employee or applicant has inquired about,
discussed, or disclosed the compensation of the employee or applicant or another employee
or applicant. This provision shall not apply to instances in which an employee who has access
to the compensation information of other employees or applicants as a part of such
employee's essential-job functions discloses the compensation of such other employees or
applicants to individuals who do not otherwise have access to such inforrriation, unless such
disclosure is in response to a formal complaint or charge, in furtherance of an investigation,
proceeding, hearing, or action, including an investigation conducted by the employer, or is
consistent with the contractor's legal duty to furnish information.

d. The contractor will send to each labor union or representative of workers with which it has a
collective bargaining agreement or other contract or understanding,'a notice.to be provided
by the agehcy.contracting officer, advising the labor uriion or workers' representative of the
contractor's commitments under section 202 of Executive Order 11246 of September 24.
1965, and shall post copies of the notice in conspicuous places available to employees and
applicants fpr'employment.

e. the contractor will comply with all provisions of Executive Order 11246 of September 24,
1965, and of the rules, regulations, and relevant orders of the Secretary of Labor.

f. The contractor will furnish all information and reports required by Executive Order 11246 of
September 24, 1965, and by the rules, regulations, and orders of the Secretary of Labor, or
pursuant thereto, and will permit access to his books, records, and accounts by the
contracting agency and the Secretary of Labor for purposes of investigation to ascertain
compliance vyith such'rules, regulations, and orders.

(i) In the event of the contractor's non-compiiance with the nondiscriminatjon clauses of this contract or
with any of such rules, regulations, or orders, this contract may be canceled, terminated or suspended
in whole or in part and the contractor may be declared ineligible for further Government contracts in
accordance with procedures authorized in Executive Order 11246 of September 24,1965, and such
other sanctions may be imposed and rerfiedies invoked as provided in Executive Order 11246 of
September 24, 1965, or by rule, regulation, or order of the Secretary of Labor, or as otherwise
provided by law.

(j) The contractor will include the provisions of paragraphs (1) through (8) in every subcontract or
purchase order unless exempted by rules, regulations, or orders of the Secretary of Labor issued
pursuant to section 204 of Executive Order 11246 of September 24,1965, so that such provisions will
be binding upon each subcontractor or vendor. The contractor will take such action with respect to
any subcontract or purchase order as may be directed by the Secretary of Labor as a means of
enforcing such provisions including sanctions for noncompliance: Provided, however, that in the event
the contractor becomes involved in, or is threatened with, litigation with a subcontractor or vendor as
a result of such direction, the contractor may request the United States to enter into such litigation to
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protect the interests of the United States,

28. Davis-Bacon Act, as amended (40 U.S.C, 3141-3148). BMCAP shall certify by signature to this
agreement that they are familiar with the Davis-Bacon Act and shall comply with the provisions of this
act to the extent it is or becomes applicable to this agreement. When required by Federal program
legislation, all prime construction contracts in excess of $2,000 awarded by non-Federal entities must
include a provision for compliance with the Davis-Bacon Act (40 U.S.C. 3141-3144, and 3146-3148) as
supplemented by Department of Labor regulations (29 CFR Part 5, "Labor Standards Provisions
Applicable to Contracts Covering Federally Financed and Assisted Construction"). In accordance with
the statute, contractors must be required to pay wages to laborers and mechanics at a rate not less than
the prevailing wages specified in a wage determination made by the Secretary of Labor. In addition,
contractors must be required to pay wages not less than once a week. The non-Federal entity must place
a copy of the current prevailing wage determination issued by the Department of Labor in each
solicitation. The decision to award a contract or subcontract must be conditioned upon the acceptance
of the wage determination. The non-Federal entity must report all suspected or reported violations to the
Federal awarding agency. The contracts must also include a provision for compliance with the Copeland
"Anti-Kickback" Act (40 U.S.C. 3145), as supplemented by Department of Labor regulations (29 CFR
Part 3, "Contractors and Subcontractors on Public Building or Public Work Financed in Whole or in Part
by Loans or Grants from the United States"). The Act provides that each contractor or sub-recipient must
be prohibited from inducing, by any means, any person employed in the construction, completion, or
repair of public work, to give up any part of the compensation to which he or she is otherwise entitled.
The non-Federal entity must report all suspected or reported violations to the Federal awarding agency.

29. Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act (40 U.S.C. 3701-3708). BM-CAP shall certify by
signature to this agreement that they are familiar with the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards
Act and shall comply with the provisions of this act to the extent it is or becomes applicable to this
agreement. Where applicable, all contracts awarded by the non-Federal entity in excess of $100,000
that involve the employment of mechanics or laborers must Include a provision for compliance with 40
U.S.C. 3702 and 3704, as supplemented by Department of Labor regulations (29 CFR Part 5). Under 40
U.S.C. 3702 of the Act, each contractor must be required to compute the wages of every mechanic and
laborer on the basis of a standard work week of 40 hours. Work in excess of the standard work week is
permissible provided that the worker is compensated at a rate of not less than one and a half times the
basic rate of pay for all hours worked in excess of 40 hours in the work week. The requirements of 40

,  U.S.C. 3704 are applicable to construction work and provide that no laborer or mechanic must be
required to work in surroundings or under working conditions which are unsanitary, hazardous or
dangerous. These requirements do not apply to the purchases of supplies or materials or articles
ordinarily available on the open market, or contracts for transportation or transmission of intelligence.

/•

30. Rights to Inventions Made Under a Contract or Agreement. If the Federal award meets the definition of
"funding agreement" under 37 CFR §401.2 (a) and the recipient or sub-recipient wishes to enter into a
contract with a small business firm or nonprofit organization regarding the substitution of parties,
assignment or performance of experimental, developmental, or research work under that "funding
agreement," the recipient or sub-recipient must comply with the requirements of 37 CFR Part 401, "Rights
to Inventions Made by Nonprofit Organizations and Small Business Firms Under Government Grants,
Contracts and Cooperative Agreements." and any implementing regulations issued by the awarding
agency. BM-CAP shall certify by signature to this agreement that they are familiar with the provisions of
the Rights to Inventions Made Under a Contract or Agreement and shall comply with these provisions to
the extent they are or become applicable to this agreement.

31. Byrd Anti-Lobbying Amendment (31 U.S.C. 1352)—Contractors that apply or bid for an award exceeding
$100,000 must file the required certification. Each tier certifies to the tier above that it will not and has
not used Federal appropriated funds to pay any person or organization for influencing or attempting to
influence an officer or employee of any agency, a member of Congress, officer or employee of Congress,
or an employee of a member of Congress in connection with obtaining any Federal contract, grant or any
other award covered by 31 U.S.C. 1352. Each tier must also disclose any lobbying with non-Federal
funds that takes place in connection with obtaining any Federal award. Such disclosures are forwarded
from tier to tier up to the non-Federal award. BM-CAP shall submit a signed Anti Lobbying form to the
OWO for inclusion to this agreement
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NH Department of Business & Economic Affairs
Office of Workforce Opportunity

EXHIBIT D

CERTIFICATtON REGARDING LOBBYING

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and
31 U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

US DEPARTMENT OF LABOR - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
Title IB Workforce Investment Act (WIA) Programs
Older Americans Act (OAA) Senior Community Service Employment programs (SCSEP)

Contract Period: July 1, 2019 through June 30, 2023 '

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

No Federal appropriated funds have been paid .or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of- Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection

..with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any Federal
^ contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (arid by specific'mention sub-grantee or sub-contractor).

If,any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or atterhptihg to influence ah officer or employee of any agency, a Merriber of Congress, an
officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract, grant. loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub
contractor). the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to Report
Lobbying, in accordance with its Instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-l.)

The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be Included in the award document
for sub-awards at all bers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants, loans, and
cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into
this transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for
each such failure.

Su

Jeanne Aari. Executive Director
cipient Representauve Signature) (Authorized Subreclplent Representative Name & Title)

Communitv Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties. Inc. 5/15/2019
(Subreclplent Name) (Date)



NH Department of Business & Economic Affairs
Office of Workforce Opportunity

EXHIBIT E

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION AND OTHER
RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Sub-recipient Identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment.
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Sub-recipient's
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certification;

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the
certification set out below.

2. The Inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in denial
of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an
explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be considered
in connection with the NH Department of Resources & Economic Development (BEA) determination
whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary participant to furnish
a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation in this transaction.

3. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when
BEA determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined that the prospective primary
participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies available to the
Federal Government, BEA may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to BEA to whom this
proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant learns that its
certification was erroneous when subrnitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

5. The terms "covered transaction," "debarred," "suspended." "ineligible.' "lower tier covered transaction."
"participant," "person," "primary covered transaction," "principal," "proposal," and "voluntarily excluded."
as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and Coverage sections of the
rules implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR'Part 76. See the attached definitions.

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the
proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from
participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by B^.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include
the clause titled "Certification Regarding Debarment. Suspension, Ineligibitity andVoluntary
Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions." withput modification, in all lower tier covered transactions
and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

8. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in
a lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may
decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each participant
may. but is not required to. check the Non-procurement List (of excluded parties).

9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records in
order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and information
of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent person in the
ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a covered



transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who Is suspended.
debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in addition to other
remedies available to the Federal government, BEA may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS

(1) The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that It and its
principals;

(a) are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily
excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;

(b) have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had a
civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in connection
with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or local) transaction
or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust statutes or commission
of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of records, making false
statements, or receiving stolen property;

(c) are not presently indicted for otherv^se criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity (Federal,
State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (l)(b) of this
certification; and

(d) have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default.

(2) Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this certification,
such prospective partidpant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS

By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier partidpant, as defined
^ " in 45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and Its principals:

(a) are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or
voluntarily exduded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or
agency.

(b) where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such
prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will Indude
this clause entitled "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligiblllty, and Voluntary Exduslon •
Lower Tier Covered Transactions." without modification In ail lower tier covered transactions and in all
solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

Jeanne Aori. Executive Director
recipient RepresSntaa^^ignature) (Authorized Sub-recipient Representative Name & Title)

Communitv Action Program Belknap-Merfimack Counties. Inc. 5/15/2019
(Sub-redpient Name) (Date)



NH Department of Business & Economic Affairs
Office of Workforce Opportunity

EXHIBIT f

CERTIFICATION REGARDING
COMPLIANCE WITH SECTIONS 504 OF THE REHABILITATION ACT OF 1973, as

AMENDED AND AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT OF 1990

The Contractor identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as Identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

The Contractor hereby agrees that It will comply with Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended, and American's with Disabilities Act of 1990, as amended, and all r^ulremenls imposed by the
applicable regulations (45 CFR Part 84) and guidelines and Interpretations Issued pursuant thereto.

Pursuant to subsection 84.5(a) of the regulations (45 CFR 84.5(a)), the Contractor gives this Assurance In
consideration of arid for the purpose of obtaining any and all federal grants, loans, contracts, (except
procurement contracts and contracts of insurance or guaranty), property, discounts, or other federal financial
assistance extended by BEA after the date of this Assurance, Including payments or other assistance made
after such date on applications for federal financial assistance that were approved before such date. The
Contract recognizes and agrees that such federal financial assistance will be extended In reliance on the
representation and agreements made In this Assurance and that the United States will have the right to
enforce this Assurance through lawful means. This Assurance is binding on the Contractor. Its successors,
transferees, and assignees, and the person or person whose signatures appear below are authorized to sign
this Assurance on behalf of the recipient.

This Assurance obligates the recipient for the period during which federal financial assistance Is extended to
It by BEA or, where the assistance Is in the form of real property. For the period provided for In subsection
84.5(b) of the regulation (45CRF 84.5(b)).

JlijI JGi I i CJ(\ Ky Jeanne Agrl, Executive Director
(Contranbr Representative Signature^ (Authorized Contractor Representative Name & Title)

Community Action Program Belknap-Merrlmack Counties, Inc.., 5/15/2019

(Contractor Name) (Date)



NH Department of Business & Economic Affairs
Office of Workforce Opportunity

EXHIBIT G

HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABILITY AND ACCQUNTABILTY ACT
BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to comply with
the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and with the Standards for
Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45 CFR Parts 160 andl 64 and those parts
of the HITECH Act applicable to business associates. As defined herein, "Business Associate" shall mean
the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that receive, use or have access to protected
health information under this Agreement and "Covered Entity" shall mean the State of New Hampshire,
Department of Health and Human Services.

BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGRFFMFNT

(1) Definitions

a. "Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in Title XXX, Subtitle D.,Sec..

13400.

b. "Business Associate" has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Tile 45, Code of
Federal Regulations.

■j c. "Covered Entity" has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45. Code of
Federal Regulations.

d. "Designated Record Set"shall have the same meaning as the term "designated record set" in 45
CFR Section 164.501.

e. "Data Aaareoation" shall have the same meaning as the term "data aggregation" in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

f- 'Health Care Ooerations" shall have the same meaning as the term "health care operations' in 45
CFR Section 164.501.

g. 'HITECH Act" means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health Act, Title
XIII, Subtitle D, Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009.

h. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law
104-191 and the" Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
Information, 45 CFR Parts 160, 162 and 164.

I. "Individual" shall have the same meaning as the term 'individual' in 45 CFR Section 164.501
and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.501(g).

j. "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
Department of Health and Human Services.

k- 'Protected Health Information" shall have the same meaning as the term 'protected health
information" in 45 CFR Section 164.501, limited to the information created or received by Business
Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity.



I- "Required bv Law" shall have the same meaning as the term "required by law" in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

m. " Secretary" shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or his/her
designee.

n. "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments thereto.

0. "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means protected health information that is not secured
by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable, unreasonable, or
indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by a standards
developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards Institute.

P- Other Definitions - All terms not othen,vise defined herein shall have the meaning established
under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160, 162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the HITECH Act.

(2) Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information

a. Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health Information
(PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under Exhibit A of the
Agreement. Further, the Business Associate shall not, and shall ensure that its directors, officers,
employees and agents, do not use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would
constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

b. Business Associate rnay use or disclose PHI:
I. For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;

II. As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
III. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered Entity.

c. To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a third
party, Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i) reasonable
assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and used or further
disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was disclosed to the third party;
and (ii) an agreement from such third party to notify Business Associate, in accordance with the
HITECH Act, Subtitle D, Part 1, Sec. 13402 of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to the
extent It has obtained knowledge of such breach.

d. The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to provide
services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a request for disclosure
on the basis that it is required by law, without first notifying Covered Entity so that Covered Entity
has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity
objects to such disclosure, the Business Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered
Entity has exhausted all remedies.

e. If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to be bound
by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate shall be bound by such
additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of such additional restrictions and shall
abide by any additional security safeguards.

(3) Qbllaatlons and Activities of Business Associate.

a. Business Associate shall report to the designated Privacy Officer of Covered Entity, in writing,
any use or disclosure of PHI in violation of the Agreement, including any security incident involving
Covered Entity data, in accordance with the HITECH Act, Subtitle D, Part 1, Sec.
13402.



b. The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy and Security Rule as set
forth in, the HITECH Act, Subtitle D, Part 1, Sec. 13401, and Sec.13404.

c. Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books and
records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or received by the
Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for purposes of determining
Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule.

d. Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have access
to PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same restrictions and conditions
on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including the duty to return or destroy the PHI
as provided under Section (3) b and (3) k herein. The Covered Entity shall be considered a direct
third party beneficiary of the Contractor's business associate agreements with Contractor's
intended business associates, who will be receiving PHI pursuant to this Agreement, with rights
of enforcement and indemnification from such business associates who shall be^ governed by
standard provision #13 of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of protected
health information.

e. Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity, Business
Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all records, books,
agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure of PHI to the Covered
Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine Business Associate's compliance with
the terms of the Agreement.

f. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity, Business
Associate shall provide access to PHI In a Designated Record Set to the Covered Entity, or as
directed by Covered Entity, to an Individual in order to meet the requirements under 45 CFR
Section 164.524.

g. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record Set, the
Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for amendment and
incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its obligations under 45 CFR
Section 164.526.

h. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to such
disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an individual for
an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section 164.528.

i. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a request for
an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available to Covered Entity
such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations to provide an accounting of
disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section 164.528.

j. In the event any individual requests access to, amendment of, or accounting of PHI directly from
the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2) business days forward such
request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the responsibility of responding to
forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the individual's request to Covered Entity would
cause Covered Entity or the Business Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security
Rule, the Business Associate shall instead respond to the individual's request as required by such
law and notify Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

k. Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the Business
Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity: all PHI received from, or
created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the Agreement, and shall not
retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or destruction is not feasible, or the
disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in the Agreement, Business Associate shall



continue to extend the protections of the Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and
disclosures of such PHI to those purposes that make the return or destruction .infeasible, for so
long as Business Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires
that the Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

(4) Obligations of Covered Entity

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitation(s) in its Notice of
Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section 164.520, to the
extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of PHI.

b. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation of
permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or disclosed by
Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section 164.506 or 45 CFR
Section 164.508.

c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522, to the
extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of PHI.

(5) Termination for Cause

In addition to standard provision #10 of this Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately
terminate the Agreement upon Covered Entity's knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of
the Business Associate Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit G. The Covered Entity may either
Immediately terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure
the alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity determines
that neither termination nor cure is feasible, Covered Entity shall report the violation to the
Secretary.

(6) Miscellaneous

3- Definitions and Reoulatorv References. All terms used, but not^ otherwise defined herein, shall
have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, and the HITECH Act as
amended from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit G,
to a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect of as amended.

b. Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is necessary to
amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered Entfty to comply with the
changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule, and applicable federal and
state law.

c. Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights with
respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

d. Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resolved to permit
Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule and the HITECH Act.

e. Segregation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit G or the application thereof to any person(s) or
circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or conditions which can
be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the terms and conditions of this
Exhibit G are declared severable.

f. Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit G regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return or
destruction of PHI. extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section 3 k, the defense and
Indemnification provisions of section 3 d and standard contract provision #13. shall survive the



termination of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit G.

NH Department of
Business and Economic Affairs

Community Action Program
Belkhap-Merrimack Counties. Inc.

Name'of Authorized Representative

ontractor Namee State Agency Name

(ic.-u.
fn rlz^ Repr^s^i^tiveSignature in Authorized Representative Sigofature

eline, Heuser. WlOA Director Jeanne Agri. Executive Director

"Nameof AuthonzedRepresentative

Date

..5/15/2019

Date' ■



NH Department of Business & Economic Affairs
Office of Workforce Opportunity

EXHIBIT H

CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND
TRANSPARENCY ACT fFFATAI COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of individual
Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1, 2010, to report on data
related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more. If the initial award
is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or over $25,000, the
award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.

In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Sub-award and Executive Compensation Information), the
Department of Resources and Economic Development (DRED) must report the following information for any
sub-award or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:

1) Name of entity
2) Amount of award
3) Funding agency
4) NAICS code for contracts ICFDA program number for grants
5) Program source
6) Award title descnptive of the purpose of the funding action
7) Location of the entity
8) Principle place of performance
9) Unique Identifier of the entity {DUNS #)
10) Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:

a. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and
those revenues are greater than $25M annually and

b. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
the award or award amendment is made.

The Contractor Identified in Section 1.3 of the Genera! Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-
252. and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Sub-award and Executive Compensation Infyrmation), and further
agrees to have the Coritractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General
Provisions execute the following Certification:

The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH
Department of Business and Economic Affairs and to comply with all applicable provisions of the
Federal Financial Accountability and Transparency Act

Jeanne Agri, Executive Director

^  Contractor Representative SignatureAuthorized Contractor Representative Name & Title
Community Action Program Belknap-Merfimack Counties. Inc"^



FORMA

As the Contractor/Subrecipient identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, I certify that the
responses to the below listed questions are true and accurate.

1. The DUNS number for your entity is: 07-399-7504 ^

2. In your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts,
subcontracts, loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more
In annual gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, sub-grants,
and/or cooperative agreements?

YES X NO

If the answer to #2 above Is NO, stop
here

If the answer to #2 above is YES. please answer the
following:

3. Does the public have access to information abput the compensation of the executives in your
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a), 78o(d)j or section 6104 of the Intemal Revenue Code of
1986?

YES X NO

If the answer to #3 above is YES, stop
here

If the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the
following:

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business
or organization are as follows:

Name: Amount: Name:

Amount: Name: Amount:

Name: Amount:

Name: Amount:
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NH Department of Business & Economic Affairs
Office of Workforce Opportunity

EXHIBIT I

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE
REQUIREMENTS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions
of Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690. Title V, Subtitle 0; 41
U.S.C. 701 et seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions executes the following Certification;

ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF LABOR - CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-
Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V. Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January
31, 1989 regulations were amended and published as Part 11 of the May 25. 1990 Federal Register
(pages 21681-
21691), and require certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-orantees and sub-contractors), prior
to award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. The certificate set out below is a material
representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False certification
or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination of grants, or government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form
should send it to: NH Department of Resources & Economic Development, Office of Workforce
Opportunity, 172 Pembroke Road, Concord, NH 03302.

(A) The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:

(a) Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,
dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee's
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of
such prohibition;

(b) Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about—

(1) The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;
(2) The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
(3) Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance

programs;and
(4) The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations

occurring in the workplace;

(c) Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the
grant be given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);

(d) Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition
of employment under the grant, the employee will—

(1) Abide by the terms of the statement; and
(2) Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal

DBEA-BMCAP SCSEP 24 BM-GAP InitialitialsOjP^



drug statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after
such conviction;

(e) Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice
under subparagraph {d){2) from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice
of such conviction. Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including
position title, to every grant officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee
was working, unless the Federal agency has designated a centra! point for the receipt
of such notices. Notice shall include the identification number(s) of each affected grant;

(0 Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice
under subparagraph (d)(2), with respect to any employee who is so convicted—

(1) Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and
including termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation
Act of 1973, as amended; or

(2) Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse
assistance or rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal,
State, or local health, law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

(g) Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
implementation of paragraphs (a), (b), (c), (d), (e), and (f).

(B) The grantee may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work
.done in-connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance: 2 Industrial Park Drive, Concord, NH 03110

Period Covered bv this Certification: From: July 1, 2019 To: June 30, 2023

Contractor Name: Community Action Program Belknap-Merrlmack Counties, Inc.

Name & Title of Authorized Contractor Reoresentatlve: Jeanne Agri, Executive Director

Contractor Representative Signature:
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Attachment A

Senior Community Service Employment Program (SCSEP)
Programmatic Assurances

Program Year 2019

BM-CAP must certify that they will conform to these assurances throughout the period of the contract by
checking each of the assurances below. These assurances apply fully to any sub-recipient, local project,
or grantee staff involved in the delivery of services. ''

You agree to;

Recruitment and Selection of Participants

^^Develop and implement methods to recruit and select eligible participants to assure maximum
participation in the program.
(Ytise income definitions and income inclusions and exclusions for SCSEP eligibility as described in
T^GL No. 12-06 to determine and document participant eligibility.
V Develop and implement methods to recruit minority populations to ensure at least proportional
representation in your assigned service area as listed in the latest Minority Report.
CTOevelop and implement strategies to recruit applicants who have priority of service as defined in Older
Americans Act section 518(b)(1 )-{2) and by the VOW (Veterans Opportunity to Work) to Hire Heroes Act
of 2011.

Individuals with priority are those who:
OAre covered persons in accordance with the VOW (covered persons who are SCSEP-eligible must
t^eive services instead of or before all non-covered persons);
WAre 65 years or older;
G^Have a disability;
□/Have limited English proficiency;
u^ave low literacy skills;
□/Reside in a rural area;
[Q/Have low employment prospects;
Q-Have failed to find employment after utilizing services provided under Title I of the Workforce
Innovation and Opportunity Act (WIOA); or
GLAre homeless or are at risk for homelessness.

Assessment

(C/Assess participants at least twice per 12-month period, or more frequently If appropriate.
QXJse assessment information to determine the most appropriate community service assignments for
participants.

Individual Employment Plan flEPI

iykstablish an initial goal of unsubsidlzed employment for all participants.
CN/Jpdate the lEP at least as frequently as assessments occur (at least twice per 12-month period).
(^Modify the lEP as necessary to reflect other approaches to self-sufficiency, if it becomes clear that
unsubsidlzed employment is not feasible.
Q^or participants who will reach the individual durational limit or would not otherwise achieve
unsubsidlzed employment, Include a provision in the lEP to reflect other approaches to self-sufficiency,
transition to other services or programs.
Of^otate participants to a new host agency (or a different assignment within the host agency) based on a
rotation policy approved by the Employment and Training Administration (ETA) in the grant agreement
and only after making'an individualized determination that the rotation is in the best interest of the
participant. Such rotation must further the acquisition of skills listed in the lEP.
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Community Service Assignment

^ase the initial community service assignment on the assessment made at enrollment.
[j^elect only designated 501(c)(3) organizations or public agencies as host agencies,
wut in place procedures to ensure adequate supervision of participants at host agencies.
G^nsure safe and healthy working conditions at the community service assignment through annual
monitoring of the host agency site and annual safety consultation with the participant at the host agency
site.

1

Recertification of Participants

(tl/^ecertify the income eligibility of each participant at least once every 12 months, or more frequently if
circumstances warrant.

Physical Examinations

[^^ffer physical examinations to participants upon program entry, and each year thereafter, as a benefit
of enrollment.

Q^Obtain a written waiver from each participant who declines a physical examination.
CJ^ot obtain a copy or use the results of the physical examination to establish eligibility or for any other
purpose.

Host Agencies

.a/)evelop and implement methods for recruiting new host agencies to provide a variety of training
options that enable participants to increase their skill level and transition to unsubsidized employment.
[^/Comply with maintenance of effort: Ensure that community service assignments do not rieduce the
number of employment opportunities or vacancies that would otherwise be available to individuals who
are not SCSEP participants. You must specifically ensure that community service assignments do not:
v/Displace currently employed workers (including partial displacement, such as a reduction In non-
overtime work, wages, or employment benefits).
anmpair existing contracts or result in the substitution of Federal funds for other funds in connection with
work that would otherwise be performed.
[i/Assign or continue to assign a participant to perform the same work, or substantially the same work, as
that performed by an individual who is on layoff.

Orientation

c/Provide orientations for participants and host agencies, including information on:
(i/Project goals and objectives
G^articipant rights and responsibilities
(Community service assignments
(^/Opportunities for paid training outside the community service assignment
^Available supportive services
Availability of free physical examinations
^ocal staff must address the topics listed above and provide additional orientation to participants on:
C^CSEP goals and objectives
(grantee and local project roles, policies, and procedures
l^/IHoliday and sick leave
(J/Assessment process
CUDevelopment and implementation of lEPs
^valuation of participant progress
OAHealth and safety issues related to each participant's assignment
i^ole of supervisors and host agencies
ciA^aximum individual duration policy, including the possibility of an extension, if applicable, and the
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documentation required to support an extension
CJ/Termination policy
(2Vi2$rievance procedure

Wages

C^rovide participants with the highest applicable required wage {highest of Federal, state, or local
minimum wage for the most nearly comparable covered employment or minimum age under the Fair
Labor Standards Act of 1938, or the prevailing rate of pay for persons employed in similar public
occupations by the same employer) for time spent in orientation, training, and community service
assignments.

Participant Benefits

t/provide workers' compensation, other benefits required by state or Federal law (such as unemployment
insurance), and the costs of physical examinations.
[/provide compensation for scheduled work hours during which the participant's host agency is closed
for Federal holidays, which may be paid or in the form of rescheduled work time, and establish written
policies related to this compensation.
S^Establish written policies relating to approved breaks in participation and any necessary sick leave that
is not part of an accumulated sick leave program.
□ Not use grant funds to pay the cost of pension benefits, annual leave, accumulated sick leave, or
bonuses.

Procedures for Pavroll and Workers' Compensation

fr^ake all required payments for participant payroll and pay workers' compensation premiums on a
tirr^ly basis.
□insure that host agencies do not pay workers' compensation costs for participants.
Durational Limits

M^imum Average Project Duratior) - 27 Months
Sj^aintain average project duration of 27 months or less, unless ETA approves an extension to 36
months.

Maximum Individual Participant Duration -48 Months

tallow participants to participate in the program no longer than 48 months (whether or not
consecutively), unless your approved policy allows for an extension and the participant meets the
extension criteria.
QirNotify participants of your policy pertaining to the maximum duration requirement, including the
possibility of an extension if applicable, at the time of enrollment and each year thereafter, and whenever
ETA has approved a change of policy.
0 Provide 30-day written notice to participants prior to durational limit exit from the program.

Transition Services

(3j5evelop a system to transition participants to unsubsidized employment or other assistance before
each participant's maximum enrollment duration has expired.
Megin transition planning for participants who will exit for durational limit at least 3-6 months prior to
their exit date.

Termination Policies
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a^Provide a 30-day written notice for all involuntary terminations that states the reason for termination
and informs the participants of grievance procedures and right to appeal.
C5^aintain written termination policies in effect and provide to participants at enrollment:
G/Provision of false eligibility information by the participant
a/Incorrect initial eligibility determination at enrollment
cVlncome ineiigibility determined at recertification
Ct/'articipanl has reached individual durational limit
lyf^articipant has become employed while enrolled
(S/lEP-related termination

Clause (must be approved by ETA prior to implementation)

Equitable Distribution

i5^omply with the equitable distribution plan for each state in which the grantee operates and only make
changes in the location of authorized positions within a state in accordance with the state equitable
distribution plan and with prior ETA approval.
It Comply with the authorized position allocations/equitable distribution listed at www.scseped.org.
□.Collaborate with all grantees authorized to serve in a state in which you operate to achieve compliance
with authorized positions while minimizing disruption to the participants.

Over-Enrollment

Ci^anage over-enrollment to minimize impact on participants and avoid layoffs.
Administrative Svstems

5J^nsure representation at all ETA-sponsored required grantee meetings.
□Communicate grant policy, data collection, and performance developments and directives to staff, sub-
recipients, and local project operators on a regular basis.
aOevelop a written monitoring tool that lists items you will review during monitoring visits, and provide
this tool to sub-recipients and local project operators.
aCevelop an annual monitoring schedule, unless the federal, project officer approves a different
standard; notify sub-recipients and local project operators of monitoring plans; and monitor subrecipients
an^ local project operators on a regular basis.
cVbevelop and provide training to increase sub-recipients' and local project operators' skills, knowledge,
and abilities.
CKvhen appropriate, prescribe corrective action and follow-up procedures for subrecipients and local
project operators to ensure that identified problems are remedied.
(^Monitor the financial systems and expenditures, Including sub-recipients and local project operators on
a regular basis to ensure compliance with cost allocations as specified in the regulations.
□■insure that sub-recipient and local project operators receive adequate resources to effectively operate
local projects.
GLTrain sub-recipients and local project operators on SCSEP financial requirements to help them
effectively manage their own expenditures, and provide general financial training as needed.
[i^nsure that all financial reports are accurate and submit them in a timely manner, as required,
(i^nsure full implementation and monitoring of requirements for customer satisfaction surveys, including
participant, host agency and employer surveys.
C\pevelop a written plan for both disaster response and recovery so that the project may continue to
operate and provide services under emergency circumstances.

Collaboration and Leveraged Resources
S-€b!laborate with other organizations to maximize opportunities for participants to obtain workforce
development, education, and supportive services to help them move into unsubsidized employment.
These organizations may include but are not limited to: workforce development boards, American Job
Centers, vocational rehabilitation providers, disability networks, basic education and literacy providers,
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and community colleges.

SuDDortive Services

iy^rovide supportive services, as needed, to help participants participate in their community service
assignment and to obtain and retain unsubsidized employment.
[Ltstablish criteria to assess the need for supportive services and to determine when participants will
receive supportive services, including after obtaining unsubsidized employment.

Sub-Recipient Selection (If Aoplicabie)

N/A In selecting sub-recipients in areas with a substantial population of individuals with barriers to
employment, national grantees will give special consideration to organizations with demonstrated
expertise in serving individuals with barriers to employment (including former recipients of national
grants), as defined in the statute.

Complaint Resolution

[>4stablish and use written grievance procedures for complaint resolution for applicants, employees, sub-
recipients, and participants.
[j/^rovide applicants, employees, sub-recipients, and participants with a copy of the grievance policy and
procedures.

Maintenance of Files and Privacy Information

D^aintain participant files for three program years after the program year in which the participant
received his/her final follow-up activity.
Qi^nsure that all participant records are securely stored by the.grantee or sub-recipient and access is
limited to appropriate staff in order to safeguard personal identifying information.
O^nsure that all participant medical records are securely stored by the grantee or sub-recipient
separately from all other participant records and access is limited to authorized staff for authorized
purposes.

S/Establish safeguards to preclude tampering with electronic media (e.g., personal identification numbers
and SPARQ or other data system logins).
tytnsure that BEA/ETA/SCSEP national office is immediately notified in the event of any potential
security breach of personal identifying information, whether electronic files, paper files, or'equipment are
involved.

□i^bmply with and ensure that authorized users under the grant comply with all SPARQ and other data
system access and security rules.

Documentation

□(Maintain all documentation required for compliance with record retention rule set forth in the first bullet
oHhe prior section. Maintenance of Files and Privacy Information.
(rMaintain documentation of waivers of physical examinations by participant.
5>Maintain documentation of the provision of complaint procedures to participants,

laintain documentation of eligibility determinations and re-certifications,
laintain documentations of terminations and reasons for termination,
laintain records of grievances and outcomes.
Maintain records required for data validation.
laintain documentation of monitoring reports for sub-recipients and host agencies.

Data Collection and Reoortinc
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ij^nsure the collection and reporting of all SCSEP required data according to specified time schedules.
3^nsure the use of the Office of Management and Budget-approved SCSEP data collection forms and
the SCSEP Internet data collection and evaluation system, SPARQ, or the successor data system as
designated by ETA.
O^nsure at the grantee or sub-recipient level that those capturing and recording data are familiar with the
latest instructions for data collection, including ETA administrative issuances (e.g., Training and
Employment Guidance Letters, Data Collection and Data Validation Handbooks, and the Older Worker
Community of Practice).
[l«^nsure data are entered directly Into the WDCS/SPARQ, or the successor data system as designated
by ETA.
S/Legally obligate sub-recipients to turn over complete data files in the specified electronic format, as well
as hard copy case files, to the grantee when sub-recipients cease to administer SCSEP.
QLi^egally otiligate new sub-recipients to collect and enter complete data related to any participants whom
they acquire upon becoming sub-recipients, including any participants who are still in the follow-up period.

If the grantee is not in compliance with any of the assurances above, provide information on a separate
attachment indicating what specific steps the grantee is taking to conform to these standard grant
requirement(s).

By signing below, 1 certify that BM-CAP will comply with each of the listed requirements and will remain In
compliance for the duration of the contract period.

Jeanne Agri, Executive Director 5/15/2019
Slghaifure of Authorized Representative Date
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state of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, William M. Gardner, Seactary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that COMMUNITY ACTION

PROGRAM BELKNAP AND MERRIMACK COUNTIES, INC. is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered

to transact business in New Hampshire on May 28, 1965. I fiiither certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of

State's office have been received and is in good standing as far as this office is concerned.

Business ID; 63021

Certificate Number 0004482211

iBii

o

%iS*

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF.

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 1st day of April A.D. 2019.

William M. Gardner

Secretary of State



COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM

BELKNAP-MERRI MACK COUNTIES^ INC.

CORPORATE RESOLUTION

The Board of Directors of Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties,
Inc. authorizes the Executive Director, Deputy Director, Budget Analyst, Chief Accountant,
President, Vice-President(s) or Treasurer of the Agency to sign contracts and reports with the
State of New Hampshire, Departments of the Federal Government, which include all federal
#269 and #272 Forms, and public or private nonprofit agencies including, but not limited to, the
following:

•  Department of Administrative Services for food distribution programs
•  Department of Education for Nutrition programs
• Depiartmerit of Health and Human Services

- Bureau of Elderly and Adult Services for elderly programs
- Bureau of Homeless and Housing Services for homeless/housing programs
- Division of Children, Youth, and Famiiies for child care programs
- Division of Family Assistance for Community Services Block Grant
- Division of Public Health Services for public health programs

• Depai^ent of Justice for child advocacy/therapy programs . .
- • Department of Tr^sportation-Public Transportation Bureau for transportation programs
•  Public, Utilities Commission for utility assistance programs
• Workforce Opportunity Council ,for employment and job training programs
•  Department of.Natural and Cultural Resources
• New Hampshire Office of Strate^c Initiatives (OSI) for Low Income Energy Assistance,

Wea^erization, SEAS-^d-Block Grant programs
• New' Hampshire Conimunity Development Finance Authority
• New Haihpshire Housing-Finance Authority'
• New Hampshire Secretary of State
• U.S. Department of Health and Human Services
•  U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
• U.S. Department of the Treasury - Internal Revenue Service
•  and other departments and divisions as required

This Resolution authorizes the signing of all supplementary and subsidiary documents
necessary to executing the authorized contracts as well as any modifications or amendments
relative to said contracts or agreements.

This Resolution was approved by the Board of Directors of Conimunity Action Program
Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. on January 10, 2019, and has not been amended or revoked
and remains in effect as of the date listed below.

31 i

•;5/l5/2Q19

"  ', ̂ ' -1 Date
>  ' r-v -;

Dennis T. Martino

Secretary/Clerk '

AgHKyCwpb^e Resolution .1/10/2019



Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.

CERTIFICATE OF VOTE

Dennis T. Martino. Secretary-Clerk of Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties.
(hereinafter the "Corporation"), a New Hampshire corporation, hereby certify that: (I) I am the

duly elected and acting Secretary-Clerk of the Corporation; (2) I maintain and have custody and am
familiar with the minute books of the Corporation; (3) I am duly authorized to issue certificates with
respect to the contents of such books; (4) that the Board of Directors of the Corporation have
authorized, on 01/10/2019 such authority to be in force and effect until 6/30/2023
(contract termination date), (see attached)

The person(s) holding the below listed positipn(s) are authorized to execute and deliver on behalf of
the Corporation any contract or other instrument for the sale of products and services:

Jeanne Agri, Executive Director

Michael Tabory, Deputy Director
Steven E. Gregoire, Budget Analyst

Sara A. Lewko, President, Board of Directors

(5) The meeting of the Board of Directors was held in accordance with New Hampshire, (state of
incorporation) law and the by-laws of the Corporation; and (6) said authorization has not been
modified, amended or'rescinded and continues in full force and effect as of the date hereof. Excerpt
of dated .minutes or copy of article or section of authorizing by-law must be attached.

FN WITNESS WHEREOF, 1 have hereunto set my hand as the Clerk/Secretary of the corporation
this I Stdi dav.of . May .20 19 .

Secretary-Clerk

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

COUNTY OF MERRIMACK

On this day of . 20 19 . before me, Kathy L. Howard the

undersigned Officer, personally appeared Dennis T. Martino who acknowledged her/himself to be

the Secretary-Clerk of Community. Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc., a corporation

and that she/he as such Secretary-Clerk being authorized to do so, executed the foregoing instrument

for the purposes therein contained.

IN WITTJESS WHEREOF, I hereunto set my hand and official seal.

No Publi

Notary Public/Justice of the-Peace ;
-.-v. '

Commission Expiration Date: I^tmy l HOW^WO Nrtaiy PuMc, ' \
My; pomMdhi&qiM im ■ ''



ACORCf CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE IMWOO/YYYY)

05A)7/2019

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND. EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POUaES
BELOW. THIS CERTIRCATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(8). AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT If the certlficats holdtr la an ADDITIONAL INSURED, ttis poUcy(laa) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provialona or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, aublect to the terma and condWona of the poUcy, certain pollcies may require an endoraemant A statement on
this certlflcate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endoraementfa).

PRODUCER

FIAI/CroM Iraurance

1100 Qm Street

Manchwter NH 03101

Karen Shaughnessy

(S03)MM21B («03)M5^31 __

Soo&ss: I^AughnessyQcrossagency.com
MSURER(8) AFfOROINO COVERAGE NAICe

iNSURStA; Philadelphia Ins Co
INSURED

Community Action Programs.

BeO(nap4aernmack Counties inc.

P.O.Box 1016

Conconl NH 03302

yyyRgP g. Granlta State Health Care and Human Servicee Self-

INSURER C : !"• CO 20261

MSURERD:

WSURBte:

INSURER P:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THATTHg POLICIES OF INSURANCE USTEO BetOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POUCY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWTTHSTANONG ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY COffTRACTOR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECTTO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POUCIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POUCIES. UMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY RAID CLAIMS.

LTR- TYPECFHSURANCE POUCY NUMBER
POLICY EXP
iMM/oorrvYW UMTTS 1

A

■i

1

X COMHERaALQCNStALUABtUTY

e 1 X| OCCUR

(

PHPK1887527
1

10A)1/2018 10X11/2019

EACH OCCURRENCE , 1.000.000
^CUMS^AAO UUUUti lUULNIUJ

' PRF*t5tF* rp" > , 100,000

MED C(P lAnr orw owMni , 5.000
. .. - .. ...

PERSONAL IADV INJURY , 1.000.000
"OB

X
lAOORgOATB LIMITAPPueS PER:

POUCY 1 1^ rn LOC
OTHER: — — •

GENERALAGGREGATE , 3.000,000

PRODUCTS - COMPfOP AOG ^ 3.000.000
t

A

i

AU1pMOBn.E LUBtrrr

1

PHPK18875A1 10/01/2018 10X}1/2019

llaMMMnI) S 1,000.000

X ANY AUTO

OWNED
AUTOS ONLY
HIRED

.ALfTOSONLY

.

HEOULED
TOS
M-OvmED
TOS ONLY

eOblLY INJURY <Pw pmont s

......

sc
<AU

BODILY INJURY {Pm •eoMnQ 1

■nC
.'AU

MOKftW.BMJACe' -
iPweedamO' t

' Uninsured motorist i 1.000.000

i A
X UMBRELLA UAB

'excess LIA8
>< ,OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE PHUB64ei74 ' 10/01/2018 '10/01/2019
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Jeanne Agri

PROFESSIONAL PROFILE

Versatile and experienced leader with highly developed communication skills: written, verbal and presentational. Adept

in coaching and mentoring employees and.colleagues as evidenced by my selection by the National Office of Head Start

to serve as a mentor for new Head Start Directors. Committed to continuous improvement of activities to ensure they

meet outcomes approved by the board through strategic planning, creating goal-oriented systems and conformance with

all local, state and federal guidance.

Operations Management Team

Building & Leadership Strategic

Business Planning

PROFESSIONAL SKILLS

Community Needs Assessment

Staff Supervision & Development

Strategic Planning

Budget Development

Community Partnerships

Project Management

WORK EXPERIENCE

Commuoity Action Program Belknap-Merrimack 2018-Present
Executive Director

•  Ensures, in concert with the Board of Directors, that the organization has a long-range strategy which makes
consistent and timely progress towards meeting the Agency's overall mission.

•  Develops and secures all major documents required by the Agency and its subsidiaries under Corporate law,
Federal and State Regulations, including but not limited to, Articles of Incorporation, Bylaws, IRS
Determination, Personnel Policies, Fiscal/Auditing Procedures, Audits, IRS 990s, Planning documents.
Reporting documents, Grant applications as approved by the Board of Directors.

•  Oversees ail grant awards, ensuring that the statutory, regulatory, and/or program and financial requirements are
met, that generally accepted accounting principles are applied, and that all program and financial policies and
procedures are adhered to.

•  Provides leadership in developing programs, organizational structures and financial systems that carry out the
instructions and policies authorized by the Board.

•  Promotes active and broad participation by volunteers in all areas of the organization's work.

Southern New Hampshire Services, Manchester, NH
Education and Nutrition Operations Director 2016 - Present

Coordinate, manage and monitor workings of Child Development. Women Infant and Children, and
Literacy Programs, as well as development of an agency wide Two-Generational Approach to services
Formulate, improve and implement departmental and organizational policies and procedures to
maximize output. Monitor adherence to rules, regulations , and procedures
Assist in the recruitment and placement of required staff; establishment of organizational structure:
delegation of tasks and accountabilities

Supervise staff, including establishment of work schedules and monitoring and evaluating performance
in partnership with Executive Director

Assist in development of strategic plans for operational activity; implement and manage operational
plans

Continue with all previous duties as Director of Child Development Programs.



Jeanne Agri

Director of Child Developmunl Programs ' 2001-2016
Hire, coach and evaluate the performance of Program Managers, Specialists. Coordinators. Center
Directors, Teachers and Head Start support staff

•  Provide coaching, and learning opportunities for all employees focused on promoting, supporting and
improving early development of children from the prenatal stage to five years of age using research -
based practices

Plan and implement strategic interventions with Program Managers. Specialists. Coordinators and
Center Directors for sites needing administrative support and direction

•  Plan, coordinate and facilitate regular leadership meetings for evaluating and strengthening systems to
maintain the highest quality of services in compliance with Head Start Performance Standards

•  Develop internal structures, systems, and policies supporting major content areas of Head Start program
including education, health, mental health, social services, parent involvement, nutrition, disab il ities ,
and,transportation

•  Collaborate with managers and internal fiscal department in the monitoring and control of component
budgets; identification and interpretation of Head Start and community needs; conformance to the
Performance Standards and other regulatory requirements

•  Work in partnership with internal departments to support project goals and meet customerexpectations
•  Establish and maintain relationships and collaborations with public school districts, systems of higher

education, and other community agencies and partners
•  Ensure adequate systems in place to maintain the highest quality ofservices to children and families in

compliance with Head Start Performance Standards

•  Ensure consistency in service delivery across the program with attention to inclusive practices and
integration of component areas; encourage continuous improvement of systems.

Quality Assurance Director/Co-Director for Child Development Programs 1999-2001
•  Established and managed a robust monitoring, analysis and evaluation system with well-defined results,

milestones, and targets inclusive of Continuous Quality Improvement practices
•  Monitored for quality and compliance at Grantee and Delegate level
•  Worked closely with program Director to review, track and assess monitoring compliance throughout

program operations

•  Developed and implements a written quality assurance and performance evaluation plan in conjunction
with Governing Board, Policy Council

•  Interpreted and evaluated a variety of information to present it in meaningful oral or written form for
varied audiences and provide reliable analysis leading to sound decision-making

New Hampshire Technical College, Nashua, NH
Instructor 1995-1997

•  Taught Child Growth & Development and assisted in curriculum development for Early Childhood
Education Program

•  Planned and organized instruction to maximize documented student learning
•  Employed appropriate teaching and learning strategies to communicate subject matter to students
•  Modified, where applicable, instructional methods and strategies to meet diverse student needs

EDUCATION

Southern New Hampshire University, Manchester, NH
Master's in Business Administration June 2017

Notre Dame College, Manchester, NH
Bachelors of Arts in Elementary Education 1981

J. Agri Resume 2



MICHAEL TABORY

SUMMARY OF QUALIFICATIONS

Over, 20 years of demonstrated leadership in non-profit, corporate, and consulting management and
supervisory roles, including Human Resources, Information Management & Technology Infrastructure,
Project Management, Operations Management, and Sales & Marketing Management.

HIGHUGHTS

•  Strong decision making and multi-tasking • Strong analytical and problem solving skills,
skills in a dynamic business environment. • Demonstrated skills in business process

•  Effective utilizing a Strength Based approach analysis, requirements definition and project
to leadership and management through the scoping for software solutions and
identification of strengths, qualities and skills implementation.
of individuals. • Proven experience managing compliance with

•  Excellent verbal and written communications Federal and State program regulations,
skills in a business environment. • Open minded, with a positive attitude.

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

COjOtUNmr action program BELKMAP-MRPPTMarK COUWT1E8. IKC.
PO Box 1.016, Concord, NH 03302 October 2018 - Present

Deputy Director
•  Assists the Executive Director in the financial management, operations management and execution

of the mission of Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.
• Works clo^ly with the Executive Director and in partnership with the entire staff, to ensure the

smooth operation of the organization's key day-to-day functions.
•. Oversees the personnel structure of the Agency and ensures complisuice with federal, state and

local laws and regulations and agency personnel poUcies.
•  Develops collaborative professional relationships with other Agency staff, community-based

providers and regulatory/funding sources.
•  Performs program oversight euid management, including interviewing, hiring, scheduling, training,

supervising, evaluating and developing subordinate staff, and resolving employee problems;
assigns tasks to maximize individual and team performance; ensures compliance with Agency
policies and procedures.

•  Provides oversight and leadership of Agency technology infrastructure, tmd works with Executive
Director to develop facilities grown '

•  Assists Board of Director subcommittees with their role in planning, monitoring and evaluating the
Agency's programs.

SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES

PO Box 5040, Manchester, NH 03108 August 2006 - October 2018
Human Resources Director (March 2009 - October 2018}
•  Manage all agency Human Resource office functions.

■  Responsible for ensuring compliance with all Federal and NH State labor law, including but not
limited to ADA, FMLA, FLSA, Anti-Discrimination, wage and hour.

•  Work with leadership team in the ongoing development, review and revision of agency Personnel
Policies.



•  Provide leadership, guidance, and training to agency directors, managers and supervisors
regarding hiring, performance management, disciplinary action and employment termination.

•  Recommend and assist in coordination of technology infrastructure, including mission critical
information management software solutions, telecommunications, and connectivity.

■  Introduced euid led the implementation process of migrating the agency's Human Resource
Management and Payroll to a cloud based solution.

•  Defined, designed and led the implementation of the agency intranet (iNct). Maintain content of
iNet and provide technical support to agency website content and site maintenance.

•  Coordinate purchase,requisition and receiving for all agency technology purchases including
computers, tablets, software, and printers to ensure consistency and compatibility of products
placed on our network, and support by MIS department.

•  Participate in agency insurance renewal decisions and maintenance, including Health, Vision,
Dental, Property and Casualty, Directors and Officers, Workers Compensation.

■, Act as Safety Coordinator in conjunction with the agency Joint Loss Committee.
WIA Quality Assurance Blaiiager and Statewide Monitor (August 2006 - March 2009)
•  Responsible for reviewing and ensuring eligibility and federal compliance of all WIOA participants.
•. Provide eligibility and data validation training to all WIA staff.
•  Maintain WIA Operations Manual.
■  Contribute and review program grant submissions.
■  Responsible for on-site program monitoring of all WIA Career Navigators statewide including

subcontracted CAP agencies to ensure program compliance with federal regulations.

THE WILLIAM PALMER HOMESTEAD GROUP

POBox916,Milton,lfH 03851 November 2001 - August 2006
Owner/Independent Coxisultant
•  , Database gind Website architecture, design, development, and maintenance.
■  Small and large scale Project Management.
•  Office workflow euialysis.
•: Graphic Design and Marketing Support.

nHnTgnSAMERICA^ LLC

650 Islington Street, Portsmouth, NH 03801 April 2001 - October 2001
Project Hanager/Cdttsultaiit & Business Development Blonager
•  Responsible for all aspects of planning and managing implementation of eBusiness solutions for

Fortune 1000 companies, including resource allocation, budgeting, and time management.
•' Responsible for working with clients and developers to define Design Specifications, Project Scope,

and Project Plans.
•  Define Marketing campaigns; produce marketing collateral and customer communications,

presentations and corporate message.

PREFERRED CAPITAL CORPORATION

100 Main Street, Suite 150, Doyer, NH 03820 March 1998 - January 2001
Credit Manager / Human Resources Blanager / MIS Manager
■  Define and implement credit department policies and procedures for the New Hampshire office.
•  Responsible for relationship and communication with national funding sources.
•  Responsible for recruiting, interviewing, hiring, discipline eind morale of office personnel.
•  Responsible for definition and enforcement of company policies and overeill office operations.
•  Ensure smooth operation of office technology including, network, phone system, and end user

support.
•  Provide Marketing Creative, Collateral and Support, Sales Statistics and Analysis.

CABLETROW SYSTEMS, mc.

35 Industrial Way, Rochester, NH 03867 February J 992 - March 1996
SPECTRUM Intenutional Partners Program Manager
•  P^yidc m^ketiiig.support .and recruit new network technology manufacturers and vendors for

product integration with Cabletroh's SPECTRUM.
■  Resix}nsible for marketing and managing the Partners Program and its staff.



■  Responsibilities include technical leadership and project coordination in multi-engineer and cross-
departmental projects.

•  Responsible for all phases of development of mission critical information management
applications.

ADDITIONAL EXPEMENCE

■  Town of Milton NH Zoning Board of Adjustment - Chairperson.
■  Town of Milton NH Planning Board - Chairperson.
■  Friends of the Milton Free Public Library (non-profit organization) - Chairperson.
■  Over 10 years of customer service and sales experience and over 3 years of sales leadership.
■  Landlord - owner-occupied three-unit historic residence.
■  Greyhound Pets of America - volunteer and foster home.

EDUCATION

SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE UNIVERSITY

Portsmouth, NH - MBA coursework

UNIVERfiITT OP NEW HAMPSHIRE

Durham, NH • Bachelor of Science - Computer Science 1991

UNIVERSITY OF LANCASTER

Lancaster, Ltmcrahlre, England - Computer Science - 1987-1988



JODY S. MARLEY

JOB QUALIFICATIONS

Twenty years of management/leadership experience accompanied by excellent forecasting, budgeting and
accoimting skills. I am results driven and strive to set and attain goals for myself and my staff. I promote
independent thinking and problem-solving. I encourage others to grow in all areas of their personal and
professional lives.

CAREER OBJECTIVES

•  To use my outstanding leadership abilities and business skills to enhance quality programs for my
employer.

• To ensure the efficient and effective use of employees and maintain employee/customer satisfaction.

CAREER ̂ ERIEN^

CommuhitvActibn Pn>gi^-Belkna:b^Merrimack':GbahtiiM; to Gdncbrd,.'Iffl Feb ibl^pre^rit
Senior Accountant - Non-Profity Agency - annual bndget S23,000,000

\

•  Direct supervision of 2 employees

•  Oversight of all grant funding
• Review and approve all Journal Entries, Bank Reconciliations, AP Entries
•  Prepare audit workpapers for annual audits
•  . Pull down federal funding from PMS system
•  Provide monthly financial statements to banks and Bo^d of Directors
•  Prepare quarterly and annual flmding reports through PMS and EGRANTS
• Review bi-weekly payroll
• . Maintains and updates fiscal manuals, policies and procedures as needed

Crawford Coimtv Drug & Alcohol Executive C^missiOn Mcadville. PA - Nov 2016 - Nqv j018
Chief Fiscal Offfcer/HR Manager- Non-Profit Agency - annual budjget $3,000,000

• Direct supervision of 3 employees
• Managed all grant funding sources - 16 funding streams
• Responsible for conversion of DOS accounting system to new system - Blackbaud
• Assisted in the conversion from manual Healthcare billing to using a software system - Celerity
• Responsible for the conversion from manual payroll to the ECCA payroll system
•  Prepared budgets for organization, local, state and federal agencies
•  Prepared monthly financial reports for Board of Directors
•  Prepared audit information for outside auditors
• Oversight of the billing process to ensure proper billing of insurance claims
•  Handled all Human Resource functions of the agency, interviewing, on-boarding, benefits



•  Prepared cost allocation plans, implementation of plans, and updates as necessary when new funding
streams were recognized, and as employee positions changed or were added

• Wrote and updated accounting policies and procedures, and assisted on updating agency manual
•  Ensured internal controls were in place and continuously monitored

Boys and Girts Club of the SunCoast Lareb. FL Feb 2016-Nbv 2016
Chief Financial Officer - Non-Profit Agency - annual budget $3,500,000

•  Filed monthly grant reports to pull down funding
• Managed grants and assisted in development of new funding streams
•  Processed payroll (ADP), Accounts Payables and Accounts Receivables
•  Prepared financial statements for Board of Directors
• Wrote allocation plan for staff
•  Prepared annual budgets
•  Prepared and provided analytical reports for CEO and Board of Directors

Lutheran Services Florida^ Head Start/Eaflv Head Start Largo. Fl. _ Jannarv 20tS-Feb 2<)16.
Acting. VP of Finance/Director of Internal Controls
Senior Director of Finance -Pineiias County Head Start/Early Head Start

Responsible for oversight of financial team for Head Start/Early Head Start programs in Duval County, Palm
Beach County, and Pineiias County. Total budgets exceed $60M. Responsibilities include, but arc not limited
to the following:

Developed high performance financial staff structure.
Key staff in the conversion fit>m old software program to new program.
Consolidated monthly financial statements for Board of Directors and Executive Director
Prepared cost allocation plans
Prepared and maintain statewide budget
Developed COSO internal controls process
Monitored finance offices

Prepared risk analysis
Wrote comprehensive finance Policies and Procedures
Team leader for Audit and Federal Reviews

Monitored administrative cost rates as to not exceed 15%

Assisted with development of county budgets
Reviewed and approved contracts and leases
Prepared budget analysis and variance reports
Wrote budget for 2016 grant year
Developed cost allocation plan to correctly allocate expenditures between funding streams
Prepared Financial Statements for Policy Council and Board of Directors
Directly si^)erviscd staff of 2 employees - Accounts Payable, Grants Administrator
Oversaw correct allocations of 267 employees through ADP program
Prepared budget analysis on a monthly basis
Developed internal controls for finance office
Wrote policy for finance offices
Prepared and filed all required Head Start semi-annual and annual reports



Crawford County Gommissibriers Mdidville. PA July 2009-Decembcr 2014
CFO/HR Manager - Crawford County, Pennsytvania (Promotion)
Chief Fiscal Officer - Human Services Division of Crawford County

Responsible for oversight of all financial and Human Resource operations of Crawford County - a 6''' Class
county in northwestern Pennsylvania. The total county budget exceeds $65M annually. Responsibilities
include, but are not limited to the following:

Lead dynamic team of financial staff: 15 staff accountants, fiscal technicians and fiscal assistants.
Prepared audit schedules, and accruals for yearly County audit by external auditors.
Oversight of county grants management and reporting requirements.
Oversight of accounts payable, accounts receivable, grant applications and payroll operations for the
county.

Responsible for budget preparation working with all county departments.
Accountable for county pension plan for county employees
Developed employee benefit plans, with an annual savings of $3M per year for benefits costs
Financial management representative for union negotiations - 7 unions
Asset management and depreciatioQ
All county insurances for General Liability, Workers' Compensation, Fleet Insurance
Bond management for issuance of bonds and subsequent debt payment schedules.
Developed and implemented policies and procedures for the County.
Negotiated healthcare renewals and developed rates for employees
Developed salary scales for non-union staff
Settled contracts with 7 unions, HflnHling grievances and negotiating contracts
Wrote personnel policies for County
Managed County pension fund reconciliations for outside auditors
4 successful audits with no findings
Prepared audit schedules and reconciliatioDs - seven audits completed within two years, with
significantly reduced findings each year.
Grant management of eight Federal and State programs.
Oversight of fiscal reporting to DPW and other state and federal agencies on quarterly and annual basis.
Direct supervision eight employees - realigning duties and responsibilities based on skills and strengths.
Assisted in the decision-making process of software development for the agency.
Cash flow maintenance - average daily balance $6.8M
Budget forecasting and preparation using Excel and Eden software programs keeping spending under
budget for three years, (zero based budgeting process - non-profit programs)
Oversight of Accounts Receivables of $22M and Payables of $22M.
Developed cost allocation plans, desk procedures, and fiscal policies for county.
Responsible for oversight of the billing and accounts receivable department.

PENNCREST School DUtrict Saegertdwp. PA Decl994-JuW 2006

Director/Financial Manager - Day Care/Head Start programs
Fiscal Manager - Day Care/Head Start programs

Responsible for all fiscal operations of the Preschool and Head Start divisions of school district. Promoted to
Director within two years of initial ,hire date. Combined preschool enrollment was over 175 students.



Restructured programs to operate more cost effectively.
Developed Pre-BCindergarten programs for the three preschools.
Managed Keystone Stars program for preschools - receiving two stars at one location and four stars at
the other.

Successful oversight of the accr^itation process for preschools.
Responsible for 1.5M budget
Prepared all financial statements and reports for school board and auditors
Developed and implemented fund-raising activities for preschools
Supervised, trained and evaluated staff of fifteen.

Designed spreadsheet programs to streamline accounting systems
Successfully wrote federal and state grants for programs - grant amounts exceeded $400K.
Prepared payroll reconciliations for staff of 32 employees

• Managed all accounts payables and receivables in excess of $400K
• Reconciled bank statements

EDUCATION

B.S. Accounting 3.88 GPA Mercyhurst College . Summa Cum Laude
M.A. Org Leadership 3.82 GPA Mercyhurst College

COMPUTER SKILLS

Eden MAS90 AS400 Quickbooks^ I-Cams (CAPPS) KRONOS
Excel PowerPoint Word Peachtree Promise Fiscal Systems SharePoint
MIP (Abila) Navision Financial Edge Celerity Billing ECCA Payroll Systems
ADP Payroll systems



Community Action Program Bclknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.

Department of Business and Economic Affairs

OfHce of Workforce Opportunity

Senior Community Services Employment Program (SCSEP)

Name Job Title Salary/Benefits

Jeanne Agri .Executive Director $ 173.805.74

Michael Tabory .DeputyDirector ... , $.142,614.40

Jody Marlcy Senior Accountant $^.8.7,006.55,. .
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mOFESSIONAI.,\SSOOIATlON

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTAiVTS

WOLfEBORO • NORTH CONWAYTo the Board of Directors , concord
Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, inc. sTR;\m\M
Concord. New Hampshire

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Community Action Program
Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. (a nonprofit organization), which comprise the statements of
financial position as of February 28, 2018 and 2017, and the related statements of cash flows,
and notes to the financial statements for the years then ended, and the related statements of
activities and functional expenses for the year ended February 28, 2018.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant
to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' ResponsibUitv

Our responsibility is to express ah opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of Arherica and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors'
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial .
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropri^e in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements;

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

1



Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. as of
February 28, 2018 and February 28, 2017, and the changes in their net assets and their cash
flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America. i

Report on Summarized Comparative information
We have previously audited Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.'s
2017 financial statements, and we expressed an unmodified audit opinion on those audited
financial statements in our report dated October 30, 2017. In our opinion, the summarized
comparative information presented herein as of and for the year ended February 28. 20t7, is
consistent, in all material respects, with the audited financial statements from which it was
derived.

Other Matters

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as
a whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as required by Title 2
■U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Unlfonv Administrative Requirements, Cost
Pnnciples and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, is presented for purposes of additional
analysis and is not a required part of the financial statements. Such information Is the
responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying
accounting, and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has
been subjepted to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements" and
certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to
-the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the
financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is
fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required bv Government Auditing Standards
In accordance with Government Auditing Standahds, we have also issued our report dated
January 8, 2019, on our consideration of Coriimunity Action Program Belknap-Merrimack
Counties, Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with
certain .provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The
purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of intemal control over financial
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on
intemal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an
audit performed in accordance with Govemment Auditing Standards in considering Community
Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, i Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting
and compliance.

Concord, New Hampshire
January 8, 2019



COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP ■ MgRRlMACK COUNTIES. INt^

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
FEBRUARY 28. 2018 AND 2017

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash

Accounts receivable
inventory
Prepaid expenses
Investments

Total current assets

PROPERTY

Land, buildings and improvements
Equipment, furniture and vehicles

Total property

Less accumulated depreciation

Property, net

OTHER ASSETS
Due from related party

Total other assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Current portion of notes payable
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Refundable advances

Total current liabilities

LONG TERM LIABILITIES
Notes payable, less current portion shown above

Total liabilities

NET ASSETS

Unrestricted
Temporarily restricted

Total net assets

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

2018

$  1,751,685
2,993,405

26,567

88,287
98.753

^958,697

4,634,220
6,227,722

10,861,942

6,936,808

3,925,134

139.441 •

139,441 .

2017

$  1,732.344
2,161.972

21,530
94,315
85,225

•  4,095.386

4.618.289
5.838.444

10,456,733

6,818.622

3,638,111

139.441

139,441

$  9,023,272 $ 7.872.938

$  172,745
1,443.697

1,056,676
1,187,333

3,860,451 ■

962.781

4.823,232

3,497,187-
702.853

4.200,040

$  163,753
847.707

1,019.426
1.159.331

3.190,217

1,151.156

4.341.373

2.887,454
644.111

3,531.565

$ 9,023,272 $ 7.872.938

See Notes to Financial Statements
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COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP - MFRRIMACK COUNTIES. INC.

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 28, 2018

Unrestricted

Temporarily
Restricted

2018

Total

2017

Total

REVENUES AND OTHER SUPPORT

Grant awards

Other funds

In-kind

United Way
Realized gain on sale of property

$ 17,935,847
1,538,501

1,147,978

30,517

$
2,870,131

$ 17,935,847..
4,408,632

1,147,978

30,517

$ 15.822,185
4,769,775
.1,100.528

43,751
20,250

Total revenues and other support 20,652,843 2,870,131 23,522,974 21,756,489

NET ASSETS RELEASED FROM

,  RESTRICTIONS 2,811,389 (2,811,389)

Total 23,464,232 58,742 23,522,974 21,756.489

EXPENSES

Salaries and wages
Payroll taxes and benefits
Travel ;

Occupancy
Program services
Other costs

Depreciation
In-kind

8,295,198
2,054,965

281,239
1,222,773
7,979,371

1,636.269

236,706
1,147,978

-

8,295,198
2,054,965
281,239

1,222,773

7,979,371

1,636,269
236,706

1,147,978

7.973.527
1,997,820
277,832

1,134,026
7,104,507

1,512,410
225.631

1.100.528

Total expenses 22,854,499 . 22,854,499- 21.326.281

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS ,609,733 58,742 668,475 i 430,208

NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 2,887,454 644,111 3,531 ;565 3,101,357

NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR $  3,497,187 $  702,853 $  -4,200,040 $ 3,531,565

See Notes to Financial Statements
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COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP - MERRIMACK COUNTIES. INC.

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 28. 2018 AND 2017

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Change in net assets
Adjustments to reconcile change In net assets to

net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation
Gain on sale of property
(Increase) decrease in current assets:

Accounts receivable

Inventory
Prepaid expenses

Increase (decrease) in current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Refundable advances

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Additions to'prope^
Investment In partnership
Proceeds from sale of property

NET.CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM.FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Repayment of long term debt

NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES

NET INCREASE IN CASH

CASH BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH BALANCE. END OF YEAR

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION:

Cash paid during the year for Interest

2018 2017

$  668,475 $ 430,208

236,706 225,631

(831,433)
(5.037)
6,028

595,990
37,250

28,002

735,981

(523,729)
(13,528)

(537,257)

(179,383)

(179,383)

19,341

1,732,344

$  1,751,685

73,582

(20,250)

481,783

8,393

6,609

(335.107)
45,752
37,296

880,315

(127,048)
(12,919)
20,250

(119.717)

(152,251)

(152.251)

608,347

1.123,997

$ 1,732,344

$ 109,150

See Notes to Financial Statements
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COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP ■ MERRIMACK COUNTIES. INC.

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 28, 2018
WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR THE YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 28. 2017

2018 2017
Prooram Manaaement Total Total

Salaries and wages $  8,026,291 $ 268,907 $ 8,295,198 $ 7.973,527
Payroll taxes and benefits 1,948,839 106,126 2,054,965 1.997,820
Travel 279,829 1.410 281,239 277,832
Occupancy 1,107,004 115,769 1,222,773 1,134,026
Program Services 7,979,371 - 7,979,371 7,104.507
Other costs:

Accounting fees 24,915 27,549 52,464 48,888
Legal fees 5,137 - 5,137 45,447
Supplies 236,553 26,718 •  263,271 259,191
Postage and shipping 49,153 1,052 50,205 55,100
Equipment rental and maintenance '  1,680 • 1,680 5,503
Printing and publications 3,643 27,649 31,292 13,967
Conferences, conventions and meetings 13,730 9,544 23.274 27,628
Interest 68,274 5,308 73,582 109,150
Insurance 123,457 35,257 158,714 158,030
Membership fees 19,045 8,668 27.713 19,672
Utility and maintenance 185,882 64,390 250,272 - 123,416
Computer services 21,517 17,179 38,696 36,678
Other 645,081 14,888 659,969 609,740
Depreciation 231,959 4,747 236,706 • 225.631
In-kind 1,147,978 - 1,147,978 1,100,528

Total functional expenses $ 22,119.338 $ 735,161 $ 22,854,499 $ 21,326,281

See Notes to Financial Statements
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COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP - MERRIMACK COUNTIES. INC

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 28. 2018

1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES .

Nature of Organization

Community Action Program Belknap - Merrimack Counties, Inc. (the Organization) is a
New Hampshire nonprofit organization that serves nutritional, health, living and support
needs of the low income and elderly clients in the two county service areas, as well as
state wide. These services are provided with the financial support of various federal,
state, county and local organizations.

Basis of Accounting
The financial statements are prepared oh the accrual basis of accounting in accordance
with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) of the United States.

Financial Statement Presentation

Financial statement presentation follows the recommendations of the FASB in its
Accounting Standard Codification No. Q5Q Financial Statements of Not-ForrProfit
Organizations. Under FASB ASC No. 958, the Organization is required to report
information regarding its financial position and activities according to three classes of
net assets: unrestricted net assets, temporarily restricted net assets, and permanently
restricted net assets. The classes of net assets are determined by the presence or
absence of donor restrictions. As of February 28, 2018 the Organization had no
permanently restricted net assets and had temporarily restricted net assets of $702,853.

The financial statements include certain prior-year summarized comparative information
In total but not by net asset class. Such information does not include sufficient detail to
constitute a presentation in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles.
Accordingly, such information should be read in conjunction with the Organization's
financial statements for the year ended February 28, 2017, from which the summarized
information was derived.

Income Taxes

The Organization is organized as a nonprofit corporation and is exempt from federal
income taxes under Internal Revenue Code Section 501(c)(3). The Internal Revenue
Service has determined them to be other than a private foundation..

The Organization files information returns in the United States and the State of New
Hampshire. The Organization is no longer subject to examinations by tax authorities for

. years before 2014.



Accounting Standard Codification No. 740 (ASC 740), Accounting for Income Taxes,
established the minimum threshold for recognizing, and a system for measuring, the
benefits of tax return positions in financial statements. The Organization has analyzed
its tax position taken on its information returns for the years (2014 through 2017), and
has concluded that no additional provision for income taxes is necessary in the
Organization's financial statements.

Propertv

Property and equipment is recorded at cost or, if donated, at the approximate fair value
at the date of the donation. Assets purchased with a useful life in excess of one year
and exceeding $5,000 are capitalized unless a lower threshold is required by certain
funding sources. Depreciation is computed on the straight-line basis over the estimated
useful lives of the related assets as follows;

Buildings and improvements 40 years
Equipment, furniture and vehicles 3 - 7 years

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with United States generally
accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates and
-assumptions that affect certain reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure
of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results
could:differ from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
For" purposes of the statement of cash flows, the Organization considers all liquid
investments purchased with original maturities of three months or less to be cash
equivalents. The Organization maintains its cash in bank deposit accounts, which at
times may exceed federally insured limits. The Organization has not experienced any
losses in such accounts and believes it is not exposed to any significant risk with
respect to these accounts.

Contributions

All contributions are considered to be available for unrestricted use unless specifically
restricted by the donor. Amounts received that are restricted by the donor for future
periods or for specific purposes are reported as temporarily restricted or permanently
restricted support, depending on the nature of the restriction. However, if a restriction is
fulfilled in the same period in which the contribution is received, the Organization reports
the support as unrestricted.

Contributed Services

Donated sen/ices are recognized as contributions in accordance with PASS ASC No.
958, Accounting for Contributions Received and Contributions Made, if the services (a)
create or enhance non-financial assets or (b) require specialized skills, and would
othenwise be purchased by the Agency.

Volunteers provided various services throughout the year that are not recognized as
contributions in the financial statements since the recognition criteria under FASB ASC
No. 958 were not met.



In-Kind Donations I Noncash Transactions
Donated facilities, services and supplies are reflected as revenue and expense in the
accompanying financial statements, if the criteria for recognition is met. This represents
the estimated fair value for the service, supplies and space that the Organization might
incur under normal operating activities. The Organization received $1,147,978 in
donated facilities, services and supplies for the year ended February 28, 2018 as
follows:

The Organization receives contributed professional services that are required to be
recorded in accordance with FASB ASC No. 958. The estimated fair value of these
services was determined to be $292,141 for the year ended February 28, 2018.

The Organization also receives contributed food commodities and other goods that are
required to be recorded in accordance with FASB ASC No. 958. The estimated fair
value of these food commodities and goods was determined to be $846,237 for the year
ended February 28, 2018.

The Agency pays below-market rent for the use of certain facilities. In accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, the difference between amounts paid for the
use of the facilities and the fair market value of the rental space has been recorded as
an in-kind donation and as an in-kind expense in the accompanying financial
statements. The estimated fair value of the donation was determined to be $9,600 for
the year ended February 28, 2018.

Advertising

The Organization expenses advertising costs as they are incurred. Total advertising
costs for the year ended February 28, 2018 totaled $32,655.

inventory

Inventory consists of weatherization supplies and work in process and is valued at the
lower of cost or net realizable value, using the first-in, first-out method.

2. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

Accounts receivable are stated at the amount management expects to collect from
balances outstanding at year end. Balances that are still outstanding after management
has used reasonable collection efforts are written off through a charge to the valuation
allowance and a credit to accounts receivable. The allowance for uncollectible accounts
was estimated to be zero at February 28. 2018. The Organization has no policy for
charging interest on overdue accounts.

3. REFUNDABLE ADVANCES

Grants received in advance are recorded as refundable advances and recognized as
revenue in the period in which the related services or expenditures are performed or
incurred. Funds received in advance of grantor conditions being met aggregated
$1,187,333 as of February 28, 2018.



4. RETIREMENT PLAN

The Organization has a qualified contributory pension plan which covers substantially all
employees. The cost of the plan is charged to programs administered by the
Organization. The expense of the plan for the year ended February 28, 2018 totaled
$202,725.

5. LEASED FACILITIES

Facilities occupied by the Organization for its community service programs are leased
under various operating leases. The lease terms range from month to month to twenty
years. For the year ended February 28, 2018, the annual lease expense for the leased
facilities was $479,964.

The approximate future minimum lease payments on the above leases are as follows:

Year Ended

February 28 Amount

2019 ' $ 449,443
2020 405,088
2021 339,230
2022 88,762
2023 88,762

Thereafter 1.053.765

Total

6. ACCRUED EARNED TIME

The Organization has accrued a liability for future annual leave tirrie that its employees
have earned and vested with the employees in the amount of $369,827 at Febnjary'28,
2018.

7. BANK LINE OF CREDIT

The Organization has a $200,000 revolving line of credit agreement (the line) with a
bank that is due on demand. The line calls for monthly variable interest payments
based on the Wall Street Journal Prime Rate (4.50% for the year ended February 28,
2018) plus 1%, but not less than 6% per annum. The line is secured by all the
Organization's assets. There was no outstanding balance on the line at February 28,
2018.

a. LONG TERM DEBT

Long term debt consisted of the following as of February 28, 2018:

5.75% note payable to a financial institution in monthly
installments for principal and interest of $13,912 through July
2023. The note is secured by property of the Organization for
Lakes Region Family Center. $ 773,551
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3.00% note payable to the City of Concord for leasehold
improvements in monthly installments for principal and interest
of $747 through May 2027. The note is secured by property of
the Organization for the agency administrative building
renovations. 71,843

7.00% note payable to a bank in monthly installments for
principal and interest of $4,842 through May 2023. The note is
secured by a first real estate mortgage and assignment of rents
and leases on property located in Concord, New Hampshire for
Early Head Start. 290.132

Total 1,135,526
Less amounts due within one year 172.745

Long term portion $ 962.781

The scheduled maturities of long-term debt as of February 28, 2018 were as follows:

Year Ending
February 28 Amount

2019 $ 172,745
2020 183,269

,  2021 194,445
2022 206,317
2023 281,158

Thereafter 97.592

£ 1135.526

9. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Property and equipment consisted of the following as of February 29, 2018:

Land $ 168,676
Building and improvements 4,465,544
Equipment and vehicles 6.227.722

10.861,942
Less accumulated depreciation 6.936.808

Property and equipment, net $ 3.925.134

Depreciation expense for the year ended February 28, 2018 was $236,706.

11



10. CONTINGENCIES

The Organization receives grant funding from various sources. Under the terms of these
agreements, the Organization is required to use the funds within a certain period and for
purposes specified by the governing laws and regulations. If expenditures were found
not to have been made in compliance with the laws and regulations, the Organization
might be required to repay the funds. No provisions have been made for this
contingency because specific amounts, if any, have not been determined or assessed
as of February 28, 2018.

During the year ended February 28, 2018, the Corporation for.National and Community
Service (CNCS) conducted a monitoring of its program and found that the Organization
was not in full compliance with the program requirements. As a result, CNCS
disallowed $37,000 of grant expenditures. The Organization retumed the funds in full
during April 2018.

11. CONCENTRATION OF RISK

For the year ended February 28, 2018, approximately $11,000,000 (47%) of the
Organization's total revenue was received from the Department of Health and Human
Services. The future scale and nature of the Organization is dependent upon continued
support from this department.

12. TEMPORARILY RESTRICTED NET ASSETS

At February 28, 2018, temporarily restricted net assets consisted of the following
unexpended, purpose restricted donations:

Restricted Purpose

Senior Center $ 127,746
Elder Services 390,089
NH Rotary Food Challenge 5,067
Common Pantry 5,912
Community Crisis 3,578
Caring Fund 14,272
Agency-FAP 14,746
Agency-H/S 140,978
Other Programs 465

mm

13. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Organization is related to the following corporation as a result of common
management:

Related Party Function

CAPBMC Development Corporation Real Estate Development

12



There was $139,441 due from CAPBMC Development Corporation at February 28,
2018.

The Organization serves as the management agent for the following organizations:

Related Party Function

Belmont Elderly Housing, Inc. HUD Property
Epsom Elderly Housing, Inc. HUD Property
Alton Housing for the Elderly, Inc. HUD Property
Pembroke Housing for the Elderly, Inc. HUD Property
Newbury Elderly Housing, Inc. HUD Property
Kearsarge Elderly Housing, Inc. , HUD Property
Riverside Housing Corporation HUD Property
Sandy Ledge Limited Partnership Low Income Housing Tax Credit Property
Twin Rivers Community Corporation Property Development
Ozanam Place, Inc. Transitional Supportive Services
TRCC Housing Limited Partnership I Low Income Housing Tax Credit Property

The services performed by the Organization included, marketing, accounting, tenant
selection (for the HUD properties), HUD compliance (for the HUD properties), and
maintenance of property.

The total amount due from the related parties (collectively) at February 28, 2018 was
$114,032 and is included in accounts receivables.

14. RECLASSIFICATION

Certain ahnounts and accounts from the prior year financial statements have been
reclassified to enhance the comparability with the presentation of the current year.

15. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Community Action Prograrfi Belknap-Merfimack Counties, Inc. has also invested money
relating to its Fix-it program in certain mutual funds. The fair value of the mutual funds
totaled $97,753 at February 28, 2018.

ASC Topic No. 825-10, Financial Instruments, provides a definition of fair value
which focuses on an exit price rather than an entry price, establishes a framework
in generally accepted accounting principles for measuring fair value which
emphasizes that fair value is a market-based measurement, not an entity-specific
measurement, and requires expanded disclosures about fair value measurements.
In accordance with FASB ASC 820, the Organization may use valuation techniques
consistent with market, income and cost approaches to measure fair value. As a
basis for considering market participant assumptions in fair value measurements,
FASB ASC 820 establishes a fair value hierarchy, which prioritizes the inputs used
in measuring fair values. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to Level 1
measurements and the lowest priority to Level 3 measurements. The three levels of
the fair value hierarchy under FASB ASC 820 are described as follows:
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Level 1 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are quoted prices available in active
markets for identical investments as of the reporting date.

Level 2 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are other than quoted market prices
in active markets, which are either directly or indirectly observable as of the
reporting date, and fair value can be determined through the use of models or other
valuation methodologies.

Level 3 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable inputs in situations
where there is little or no market activity for the asset or liability and the reporting
entity makes estimates and assumptions related to the pricing of the asset or
liability including assumptions regarding risk.

At February 28, 2018, the Organization's investments were classified as Level 1 and were
based on fair value.

Fair Value Measurements using Sianrficant Observable Inputs (Level 1^
t

Beginning balance - mutual funds $ 84,225
Total gains (losses) - realized/unrealized 9,528
Purchases 4.00Q

Ending Balance - mutual funds $ 97.753

The carrying amount of cash, current assets, other assets and current liabilities,
approximates fair value because of the short maturity of those instruments.

The Organization invested $1,000 during the year ended February 28, 2018 in a
Partnership, The Lakes Region Partnership for Public Health.

16. FISCAL AGENT

Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. acts as the fiscal agent
for the following community organizations: Franklin Community Services Building
(Franklin), the Common Pantry (Laconia). the Caring Fund (Meredith), the NH Food
Pantry Coalition, the NH Rotary Food Challenge and FGP/SCP Association Region 1.
The Agency provides the management and oversight of the revenues received
(donations) and the expenses (utilities, food and emergency services).

17. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Subsequent events are events or transactions that occur after the statement of financial
position date, but before the financial statements are available to be issued. Recognized
subsequent events are events or transactions that provide additional evidence about
conditions that existed at the statement of financial position date, including the
estimates inherent in the process of preparing financial statements. Non-recognized
subsequent events are events that provide evidence about conditions that did not exist
at the statement of financial position date, but arose after that date. Management has

.evaluated subsequent events through January 8, 2019, the date the financial
statements were available to be issued.
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SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION

(See Independent Auditors' Report)
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Marrbnadt Couray

Stata of Naw Harrpshba
Stata of Naw Harrvshba
Stata of Naw HampsMra

Stata of NawHampshiro

Stata of Naw Harrpslbre

Slala of Haw HampsNra

Stata of New HatipsMra

Soutnem Naw Hampshba Sarricas
Southern Naw Hanvshba Sarvicaa

IDENTIFYING NUMBER

1Sl54NH814Ya005

817SOOOO
81750000

CLUSTER TOTAL

USOA TOTAL

16SCANHD01

CNC8 TOTAL

NH-16-XD4e

NH-18-X046

TOTAL

NH-1S-X043

Bus 1605 and 1606

NH-18-X043

2busaa

NH65-XD01

aUSTER TOTAL

DOT TOTAL

0545^2-423010-7927-102-500731

NONE PROVIDED

05-OS-42-423010-7S27-102-500731

TOTAL

05-86-42-423010-7027-102-500731

05-05-42-423010-7927-1Q2-S00731

HUD TOTAL

EEoooeieo

DOE TOTAL

1044701

0510-53350000-102-500731

0510-53360000-102-S00731

aUSTER TOTAL

DDL TOTAL

TOTAL

724,422

181.212
1.562.630

2.466264

8 3.666.252

5

1

350.074

S 350.074

S 532.809
16.500

549.399
I

r

9.130

04.925

74.764

118,575

72.688

370261

8 919.660

8 68!682
27.068

89.782

206;442

53.911

03.044

353.397

8 157.695

8 167.605

8 395.620

71.334
68.341

130.675

8 535.205

8 17205.653

PASSED THROUGH

TOSUfrRECIPtENTS

S  535,605

1.562.630

S  2.008,435

^008,435

Saa Netaa to tha Schadula of ExpandKitras of Fadard Awards
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COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM RR.KNAP-MERRIMACK COUNTIES. INn

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 28. 2018

note 1 BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of Federal Awards (the Schedule)
includes the federal award activity of Community Action Program Belknap-
Merhmack Counties, Inc. under programs of the federal government for the year
ended February 28, 2018. The information in this Schedule is presented in
accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations
Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Because the Schedule
presents only a selected portion of the operations of Community Action Program
Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc., it is not intended to and does not present the
financial position, changes in net assets, or cash flows of the Organization.

note 2 SUIVIMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of
accounting. Such expenditures are recognized following the cost principles
contained in the Uniform Guidance, wherein certain types of expenditures are not
allowable or are limited as to reimbursement. Negative amounts shown on the
Schedule represent adjustments or credits made in the normal , course of
business to amounts reported as expenditures in prior years.

NOTE 3 INDIRECT COST RATE

Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. has elected not to
use the ten percent de minimis indirect cost rate allowed under the Uniform
Guidance.

NOTE 4 FOOD COIVIIVIODITIES

Nonmonetary assistance is reported in the Schedule at the fair value of the
commodities received and disbursed.
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COIVIMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP-MERRIMACK COUNTIES. INC

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON

AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUPmNG STANDARDS

To the Board of Directors

Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.
Concord, New Hampshire

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial
statements of Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. (a nonprofit
organization), which corhprise the statement of financial position as of February 28, 2018, and
the related statements of activities, cash flows, and functional expenses for the year then
ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon
dated January 8, 2019.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Community
Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting
(internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances
for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Community Action Program Belknap-
Merrimack Counties, Inc.'s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.'s internal
control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented,
or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a'
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.
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Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control
that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during
our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material
weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Community Action Program
Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.'s financial statements are free from material misstatement,
we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts,
and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect ori
the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not
express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no Instances of noncompliance or
other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of
the -Organization's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Govemment Auditing Standards in considering the
Organization'.s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable
for any other purpose.

Concord, New Hampshire
January 8, 2019
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH
MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE

REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

To the Board of Directors

Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.
Concord. New Hampshire

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program
We have audited Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.'s compliance
with the types of compliance requirements described in the 0MB Compliance Supplement thai
could have a direct and material effect on each of Community Action Program Belknap-
Merrimack Counties, Inc.'s major federal programs for the year ended February 28, 2018
Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.'s major federal programs are
identified in the summary of auditors' results section of the accompanying schedule of findings
and questioned costs.

Manaaemenfs Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms
and conditions of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs.

Auditors' Resoonsibiiitv

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Community Action
Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.'s major federal programs based on bur audit of the
types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued
by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S.
Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles,
and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the
Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above
that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about Community Action Program Belknap-
Merrirnack Counties, Inc.'s compliance with those requirements and performing such other
procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each
major federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of
Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.'s compliance.
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Opinion on Each Major Federal Program
In our opinion, Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. complied, in all
material respects, with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have
a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended Februarv
28.2018. ^

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance
Management of Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. is responsible
for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over compliance with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of
compliance, we considered Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.'s
internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and
material effect on each major federal program to determine the auditing procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for
each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in
accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not "for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an
opinion on the effectiveness of Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties,
Inc.'s internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a
control over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance "with a
^e of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in
internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal
cohtrol over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will hot be
prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal
control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, iri internal control
over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe
than a material weakness in internal, control over compliance, yet important enough to merit
attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in
the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in Internal
control over conipliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did
not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material
weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on intemal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of
our testing of intemal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the
requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other
purpose.

Concord, New Hampshire
January 8, 2019
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COIVIMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP-MERRIMACK COUNTIES. INC:

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 28. 2018

SUIVIMARYOF AUDITORS' RESULTS

1. The auditors' report expresses an unmodified opinion on whether the financial statements
of Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. were prepared in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

2. No significant deficiencies relating to the audit of the financial statements are reported in
the Independent Auditors' Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on
Compliance and other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in
Accordance with Government Auditing Standards. No material weaknesses are reported.

3. No instances of noncompliance material to the financial statements of Community Action
Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc., which would be required to be reported in
accordance with Govemment Auditing Standards were disclosed during the audit.

4. No significant deficiencies in internal control over major federal award programs are
reported in the Independent Auditors' Report on Compliance for Each Major Program and
On Internal Control Over Compliance Required by the Uniform Guidance. No material
weaknesses are reported.

5. The auditors' report on compliance" for the major federal award programs for Community
Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. expresses an unmodified opinion on all
major programs.

6. There were no audit findings that are required to be reported in accordance with 2 CFR
section 200.516(a).

7. The programs tested as major programs include:
U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Low Income Home Energy Assistance
Program 93.568, Head Start 93.600, Corporation for National and Community Sen/ice,
Senior Companion Program, 94.016

8. The threshold for distinguishing Type A and B programs was $750,000.

9. Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. was determined to be a low-
risk auditee.

FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AUDIT

None

FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAMS AUDIT

None
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